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Financial Highlights
BEmE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A318LLFE

2013
20134
$'000
FAIT
Turnover e 712,534 706,134 699,555 1%
Profit from operations KR T 208,967 195,465 191,466 7%
Profit before non-controlling interests 1R R R A F 151,104 128,331 123,928 18%
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A (58.597) (50,397) (53,852) 16%
Profit attributable to owners KAREBA
of the Company FE A 537 92,507 77,934 70,076 19%
Earnings per shares sRER
Basic (HKD) EAR(GET) 0.22 0.19 0.17 16%

Diluted (HKD) 55 (Bo) 0.21 0.19 0.17 1%




JESE 2R EEERA T
—T—mEFER

Financial Highlights

MBERHE
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Profit attributable to equity holders (ks '000) Earnings per share (s
EaFE ABMERN 20 BRER cgx)
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The weighted average number of shares in issue during the years ended  * HE2013F K201 F12 A3 BIEFEMHE TR

31 December 2013 and 2011 was based on the assumption that the HEMEFEHHETIREBERERORE M ETAE
415,000,000 shares before the listing on the Stock Exchange were in 415,000,000 B BT M ME L - BUZERHD
issue, as if such shares had been outstanding throughout the years ended HE2013KX2011F12A3THIEFE—ERFRE -

31 December 2013 and 2011.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and
the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the financial results for the year ended 31 December 2014.

In 2014, the U.S. economy has recovered but the economies of some
other developed countries and regions showed signs of downturns. On
the other hand, the economic growth of China has slowed down and
become more sustainable. The Chinese government kept promoting
domestic consumption and the Chinese tobacco industry had been
growing in 2014 but at a slower pace when compared to previous years.
Our profit attributable to our equity shareholders recorded an increase of
18.7% to HK$92.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.

In general, the Company has been able to maintain the similar scale of
operations as that of the previous years with total revenue amounting
to HK$712.5 million in 2014. The Company’s profit for the year stood at
HK$151.1 million.

RAZERRIERZREEBRAR([ARR ] ERE
WEARSE AEE)EE((EF)e((E=g))
RRBIRAEREE 2014F12 A31 BILFENTHS
ES i

EBCER 2014 FBE - HBHEHREBARKIBE
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BEFTANFEN TFEBFBARERREE - M
BAFLER  PEBEER2014FHFIGR - HIZ
REEEIE - HE2014F 12831 BILEE  A&®
AR R FEIE RIS R 18.7% E 2.5 B BB TT
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FEANISINEESET -



Since the listing of the shares of the Company in 2012, the Company has
made significant effort in expanding the cigarette paper box business in
China. However, the Company has faced difficulty in its expansion due to
the fierce competition in the industry. On 15 January 2015, the Company
had decided to sell its interest in Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing
Science Technology Co., Ltd. (for the manufacturing of cigarette paper
box) to Shenzhen Jinjia Color Printing Group (a leading manufacturer
of cigarette paper box business in PRC) for a consideration of RMB325
million (the “Disposal”). The decision was made after the consideration
for the interest of the shareholders and the remarkable return on the sale.
On 6 February 2015, the Company had entered into a placing agreement
conditionally to place 83,000,000 new shares of the Company (the
“Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$2.66 per Placing Share (the “Placing”).
The Placing had been completed on 26 February 2015 with the gross
proceeds from the Placing amounting to approximately HK$220.8 million.

The Tobacco packaging market in PRC has saturated and become more
competitive. The economies of China and elsewhere globally will face
uncertainties. The Company will continuously examine opportunities to
enrich its portfolio in a diverse range of businesses. Our development

WREBEEARAT
—T-mErR
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Chairman’s Statement

TERE

focus is shifting to a more quality way. The Company will realize new
development by exploration in emerging business and the proceeds from
the Placing and Disposal will be used for capturing future investment
opportunities when such opportunity has been explored.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the enormous support
from all of our stakeholders and the ardent efforts of all our staff members
who have made valuable contributions during the year. On behalf of the
Board, | extend to all our business partners and shareholders, our sincere
thanks and appreciation for your continued support.

Guo, Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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Organization Chart
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(as at 31 December 2014)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

The economy in the PRC has continued to grow in 2014 with a slight
decrease of 0.3% in GDP when compared to 7.7% in 2013. In December
2014, the Central Economic Work Conference indicated the trend of
changes in terms of productivity, investment, consumption and resource
allocation for the new China economic era. The PRC economy is entering
into a period of transformation and tends to stabilize at a more steady
growth rate. The Group has reported an increase in turnover and profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014 when compared to the year ended 31 December 2013.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in developing, promoting and sales
of imported films, self-manufactured films, cigarette paper boxes and
residential properties. Our business can be broadly classified into three
categories, namely, (i) the production of cigarette-related packaging
materials; (ii) the production of non-cigarette-related packaging
materials; and (iii) the development of properties. Among the cigarette-
related packaging material production segment of the Group, there
are three types of products which are (i) cigarette paper boxes; (i) anti-
counterfeiting film; and (ii) other cigarette film.

The Group has three manufacturing plants. The first manufacturing plant
is located in Qingdao, the PRC (the “Ener Manufacturing Plant”). The Ener
Manufacturing Plant is used for the manufacturing of other cigarette films
and non-cigarette-related films. The maximum production capacity of
the Ener Manufacturing Plant was 13,000 mt. With the commencement
of production of the second production line in late December 2014, the
maximum production capacity of the Ener Manufacturing Plant in 2015
has been increased by 4,000 mt to 17,000 mt. The second and the third
manufacturing plant of the Group is located in Huaian, the PRC (the
“JSST Manufacturing Plant” and “Sheen Colour Manufacturing Plant”).
The Sheen Colour Manufacturing Plant is used for the manufacturing
of anti-counterfeiting films. The JSST Manufacturing Plant is used for
the manufacturing of cigarette paper boxes. It is anticipated that the
production capacity of the Sheen Colour Manufacturing Plant will remain
stable in 2015.

BB m M T
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2014 FHELBEEEIER - HE2013FM7.7% -
014 FBERNEEAEEREMTFE03% 20144
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E 3958 dE)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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RESULT OF OPERATION
Turnover

Our turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less returns,
discounts and value added taxes and other sales taxes and which is
principally derived from the manufacturing and trade of cigarette-related
and non-cigarette related packaging materials. No sales has been recorded
for sale of properties during the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2014.
The Group recorded turnover of approximately HK$712.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014, representing an increase of approximately
0.9% when compared to approximately HK$706.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Turnover (Hks$'000)

REEE

—E 3]

NEBMEEEEERESEBERRE - FIHNALE
MREMEER  FE2RAFEREMIETERBAER
EMBNRENE S - HE2013F 2014512 A
BTHLEFEVESESYELE - FEBREZE2014
FNRANALFESBEERNINEES T
HEZE2013F12A31BILFELN706.1B5E BT
F#470.9%

Turnover — Cigarette-related
packaging materials

ERE (Fe0) BXRE-TENEBERMH

622,687

119,666
17%

304,748

289,565

| 146,356 50%
586,468 178,894 | 25%
83%

Cigarette-related Non-cigarette related Total &% Cigarette paper boxes Anti-counterfeiting films ~ Total &&F
packaging materials packaging materials 2014 712,534 EERE 75 14 S A 2014 622,687
BERBBREME FEREMEBREME 2013 706,134 ) ) , . ) 2013 586,468
Other cigarette films Trading of imported films
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Cigarette-related packaging materials

The increase in turnover from cigarette-related packaging materials
by approximately 6.2% to approximately HK$622.7 million (2013:
approximately HK$586.5 million) for the year ended 31 December 2014
was mainly contributed by the growth in (i) sales of our other cigarette
films by approximately 22.2%, from approximately HK$146.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$178.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, primarily as a result of the increase
in the demand from our customers; (ii) sales of our anti-counterfeiting
films by approximately 28.2%, from approximately HK$72.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$92.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014, due to the increase of the sales
of several series of cigarette brand “Nanjing”, which are using our anti-
counterfeiting product, in 2014. The increase was partially offset by
the decrease in the sales of trading of imported films by approximately
40.9%, from approximately HK$78.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to approximately HK$46.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2014. The decrease was caused by the limited supply from our
sole supplier during 2014.

Non-cigarette-related packaging materials

Revenue from sale of our only product in non-cigarette-related packaging
materials, other film, decreased by approximately 25.0%, from HK$119.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$89.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. In 2014, in order to
increase the profit and due to the limitation of the production capacity
of the Ener Manufacturing Plant, we have continuously adjusted our
production and sales plan by switching the manufacturing of other films
to other cigarette films which has higher gross profit margin. With the
commencement of production of the second production line in late
December 2014, extra production capacity of the Ener Manufacturing
Plant has provided more options for our manufacturing mix in 2015 which
may lead to a better allocation of production between different types of
other film and hence may enhance our result in the future.

Development of properties

There was no sale of properties for the year ended 31 December 2014.

EEMEEERMH
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GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Gross profit increased by approximately HK$15.6 million, or approximately
5.9%, from approximately HK$266.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to approximately HK$282.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Gross profit margin increased by 1.8%
from approximately 37.8% for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
approximately 39.6% for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Gross Profit

E7

44,866

Cigarette paper boxes Anti-counterfeiting films Other cigarette films
. BEAE 7y s di H B EHE

EOEEES packaging materials 2014 282,248

l Trading of imported films: I Non-cigarette related Total &%t
FFEERRE B AT 2013 266,647

OTHER NET INCOME

Our other net income recorded an increase of approximately HK$13.2
million, or approximately 103.1% for the year ended 31 December 2014,
when compared with the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase
was mainly due to the receipt of dividend generated from available-for-
sale financial assets amounting to HK$1.5 million and the sale of the
available-for-sale financial assets amounting to HK$9.5 million.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Our distribution costs decreased by approximately HK$0.6 million, or
approximately 3.9%, from approximately HK$15.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$14.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014, primarily due to the decrease of marketing
expenses for our other film clients which was in line with the decrease of
our sales in other film. We expect that the distribution costs will increase
in 2015 after the commencement of operations of our second production
line in the Ener Manufacturing Plant.

EMRENER
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$8.5 million,
or approximately 12.5%, from approximately HK$67.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$76.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. The increase was due to the increase of
staff cost by approximately HK$4.5 million attributable to the expansion
of our operation and the increase of the operating lease payment by
approximately HK$6.3 million for the machinery of the second production
line of the Ener Manufacturing Plant.

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs decreased by approximately 6.1% from approximately
HK$19.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately
HK$18.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2014, primarily due
to the decrease in the effective interest rate of our borrowings in the
year ended 31 December 2014 when compared to the year ended 31
December 2013.

INCOME TAX

Our income tax decreased by approximately HK$8 million from
approximately HK$47.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
approximately HK$39.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
Our subsidiary, Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Shuntai”) has been qualified as a high-and-new-
technology enterprise and is entitled to the application of a tax rate of
15% (2013: 25%) since the tax year of 2014. The positive effect of the
aforesaid change in tax rate on income tax was approximately HK$14.2
million.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 increased
approximately by 18.7% from approximately HK$77.9 million to
approximately HK$92.5 million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the total cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$175.0 million compared with
approximately HK$61.2 million as at 31 December 2013, representing an
increase of approximately HK$113.8 million. Such increase was mainly
due to the net cash inflow from borrowings and operating activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREREA

BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014
was HK$408.5 million, which were denominated in RMB, US dollar and
HK dollar, of which approximately HK$341.3 million were current interest-
bearing borrowings and HK$67.2 million were non-current borrowings.
The Group's gearing ratio, calculated by net debt divided by shareholders’
equity as at the end of the Year and multiplied by 100%, increased from
42% as at 31 December 2013 to 62% as at 31 December 2014. It was
primarily due to the issuance of convertible bond by the Company to
Mr. Guo Yumin (the chairman, an executive Director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company) for the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Sheen Tai International Investment Ltd. (IBZEEE IR A B IR A )
in 2014.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases made by the subsidiaries in the PRC which give rise to
receivables, payables, cash balances and bank loans that are denominated
in US dollars. At present, the Group has no hedging policy with respect to
the foreign exchange exposure.

As the functional currency for all subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB, these
subsidiaries are not exposed to any currency risk due to the exchange
rate movement of RMB. For subsidiaries established outside of the PRC,
they have no material financial assets and liabilities denominated in RMB.
Accordingly, the Group’s exposure to RMB currency risk is insignificant.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s total capital
expenditure amounted to approximately HK$22.8 million (2013:
approximately HK$5.4 million), which was mainly used in the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had pledged its fixed assets with
net book value of approximately HK$179.5 million (31 December 2013:
approximately HK$280.6 million) for the purpose of securing loans with
carrying value of HK$199.0 million (31 December 2013: HK$246.7
million).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

On 4 April 2014, the Company entered into an agreement (as
supplemented by a supplemental deed dated 16 May 2014) with Mr.
Guo Yumin (the chairman, an executive director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company) for the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Sheen Tai International Investment Ltd. at a consideration of
HK$165,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The consideration was satisfied by
the Company issuing a convertible bond, which can be converted into
99,517,490 ordinary shares of the Company at the initial conversion price
of HK$1.658.

The Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Besides, as
Mr. Guo Yumin is the chairman, an executive director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, he is a connected person of the Company
and the Acquisition also constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Acquisition was
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 12 June 2014,
and was completed on 30 June 2014. The Company has made an early
repayment of an aggregate principal amount of HK$95,000,000, and as
at the date of this report, the aggregate outstanding principal amount is
HK$70,000,000.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 4 April 2014, 29 April 2014, 16 May 2014, 12 June 2014 and 30
June 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 21 May 2014.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and associated companies during the year ended
31 December 2014.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2013: Nil).
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 437 employees (as
compared with 412 employees as at 31 December 2013) with total staff
cost of approximately HK$61.7 million incurred for the year ended 31
December 2014 (as compared with approximately HK$55.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013). The Group’s remuneration packages
are generally structured with reference to market terms and individual
merits. The Company has also adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme
and a share option scheme to provide incentive or reward to high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.08
per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 26
May 2015 (Tuesday), the record date for determining entitlements of the
shareholders to the proposed final dividend. The proposed final dividend is
subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") and a resolution will be proposed to the shareholders
for voting at the AGM. If the resolution for the proposed final dividend
is passed at the AGM, the proposed final dividend will be payable on or
about 5 June 2015 (Friday).
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Mr. Guo Yumin (2% ), aged 53, is the founder and chairman of the
Company. Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June
2012. He is now also the director of all the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Guo
is responsible for the overall management and formulation of business
strategy of the Group.

Mr. Guo graduated from the distant-learning college of the School of the
Central Committee of Communist Party of China (3 3£ st BBt %
FEPE) in 1988, majoring in economic management. Since 1998, Mr.
Guo has been engaging in cigarette packaging business and established
a strong business tie with the senior members of some cigarette
manufacturers. He brings extensive business and management experience
in commercial business to our management team.

In 2005, Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of
Commerce and he had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In
2010, Mr. Guo established Shenzhen Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and
has been its legal representative since then.

Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu, an executive Director and is the
father of Mr. Guo Cheng, a senior management staff.

Mr. Guo is the director of Sheen China Group Holdings Inc., Sheen
China Group Holdings Limited, Century Leader Asia Limited, Ling Xian
Fei Yu Import & Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Ling Xian Fei Yu”), Sheen
China (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sheen HK"), Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging
Printing Science Technology Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Shuntai”), Qingdao Ener
Packaging Technology Co., Ltd (“Qingdao Ener”), Jiangsu Sheen Color
Science Technology Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Sheen Color”) and Jiangsu Kingtai
Packaging and Printing Science Technology Company Limited (“Jiangsu
Kingtai”), the subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Guo is also the sole director
and sole shareholder of Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”).

Executive Directors H1{TE=E

Mr. Guo Yumin
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Ms. Xia Yu (£)8), aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director on
22 June 2012. She is the legal representative of Qingdao Ener and she is
responsible for general management of the Group.

Ms. Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu
Commerce College (T & ERIER) (which was combined with other
colleges to form Yangzhou University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms.
Xia has 17 years of experience in the cigarette-related business, as well as
business management and financial management in cigarette packaging
business.

Ms. Xia is the director of Sheen HK and Qingdao Ener, the subsidiaries of
the Group.

Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo and the step-mother of Mr. Guo Cheng,
a senior management staff.

Ms. Xia Yu
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Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (Z3[5), aged 48, has been appointed as an
executive Director and the president of the Company with effect from 1
January 2013. Mr. Zeng is responsible for the overall management and
business of the Group.

Mr. Zeng graduated from Zhejiang University (47T AZ2) with a Bachelor
of Physics degree in 1988 and obtained a Master degree of Materials
Science from Zhejiang University in 1991. From 1996 to 2010, Mr. Zeng
joined the business unit of a chemical company, which was first acquired
by UCB Films (Asia Pacific) Pty Ltd. and subsequently by Innovia Films
(Commercial) Ltd. Mr. Zeng possesses more than 18 years of experience in
the cigarette-related industry in the PRC and is familiar with the practice
of the tobacco market in the PRC.

Mr. Zeng is the director of Qingdao Ener and Jiangsu Kingtai, the
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang
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Mr. Huang Bo (), aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director
on 22 June 2012. Mr. Huang joined the Group in 2009 and he is now
responsible for the financing activities of the Group.

Mr. Huang completed a post-secondary part-time course in economic
management at Party School of Chinese Communist Party of Shandong
Province (FF £ I EE £ E ), and graduated in 1996. From 2000 to 2003,
Mr. Huang was employed to work at the Qingdao municipal government
in economic and auditing fields. From 2004 to November 2009, Mr.
Huang started working in a packaging company, and became the chief
accounting officer in 2007. In 2009, Mr. Huang was accredited as an
accreditation senior accountant (BB FEf =M & HAD) by International
Profession Certification Association (EIBXZ2# % &). Mr. Huang has more
than 9 years of experience in financial management in cigarette packaging
trading field.

Mr. Huang Bo
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Mr. Bau Siu Fung (#/02), aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Bau joined the Group in 2011 and
he is now also the company secretary and chief financial officer of
the Company. Mr. Bau is responsible for financial management and
compliance of the Group.

Mr. Bau graduated from Idaho State University with a Bachelor of
Business Administration in Accountancy and Finance. Mr. Bau has more
than 11 years of experience in the accounting and auditing field. Mr.
Bau is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Bau Siu Fung
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Ms. Fan Qing (52f5), aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in
business management and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment
in both the PRC and Hong Kong.

Ms. Fan received a master’s degree in business administration from the
Graduate School of Renmin University of China (FEIARKEHIFE
Bt) in 2000. She obtained a certificate issued by the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange after completing a training course for the senior management
member of a listed companies in the PRC. She had been serving as the
vice-president of Shenzhen Capital Group Co. Ltd. (FIITEIFIEEER
APBRAF]) for nine years. Ms. Fan is currently the chairman of the board
of directors of an investment management company in Shenzhen and the
independent director of Shenzhen Terca Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code:
$2002213) CRYIIFRERHR K BR AR, a company whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (J570), BBS, JP, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Fong was
admitted as a barrister and solicitor in Ontario, Canada in 1980, a
solicitor in England and Wales in 1986 and in Hong Kong in 1987. He has
practiced law for over 30 years and is a member of the law societies of
Hong Kong, Upper Canada and England.

Mr. Fong received his engineering degree in Canada in 1974 and his
Juris Doctor degree from Osgoode Hall Law School in Toronto in 1978.
Mr. Fong is appointed by the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the
China-appointed Attesting Officers in Hong Kong. Mr. Fong is a member
of the Hong Kong Communications Authority. Mr. Fong is currently the
independent non-executive director of the following companies whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kingway
Brewery Holdings Limited) (B/8 B ER A F (AIEE M BEE
B AA])) (stock code: 124), Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited
(formerly known as SPG Land (Holdings) Limited) (43 & &R BR A
Al (ATfEE E B (2% BMR A A])) (stock code: 337), China Investment
Development Limited (FEI& & HMEEBR A 7)) (stock code: 204), China
Oilfield Services Limited (F)&H A ARTSAR 15 B BR 2 R) (stock code: 2883),
and Evergreen International Holdings Limited (FE B (£ &) =R AR A
A) (stock code: 238).

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
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Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (FE#££), aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Lo has extensive experience
in auditing, accounting and finance.

Mr. Lo received a bachelor’s degree of business administration from the
University of Hong Kong in 1993 and a master’s degree of professional
accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2000. He is a
certified public accountant, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, fellow member of CPA Australia and
an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr. Lo is a practising accountant in Hong Kong, and has become
the managing partner of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited since 2014. Mr.
Lo is currently the independent non-executive director of the following
companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Sun Hing Vision Group Holdings Limited
(2B AR AT (stock code: 125), North Mining Shares
Company Limited (At FTEXERBRHERAF]) (stock code: 433), China
Zhongwang Holdings Limited (1 Bl R EE4ZER% A FR 2 7)) (stock code: 1333)
and China Oceanwide Holdings Limited ({245 R 72 7)) (stock code:
715).

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy
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Mr. Lau Hon Chuen (%//££2), aged 67, was appointed as a consultant on
13 July 2014. Mr. Lau is a Standing Committee Member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He
is the senior partner of Messrs. Chu & Lau Solicitors & Notaries. He was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star and Justice of the Peace. Mr. Lau is a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong, a solicitor of the Supreme Court
of England and Wales, a China-appointed attesting officer and a notary
public. Mr. Lau is an independent non-executive director of Brightoil
Petroleum (Holdings) Limited, Franshion Properties (China) Limited,
Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited, Yuexiu Transport Infrastructure Limited,
Yuexiu Property Company Limited, Joy City Property Limited (formerly
known as COFCO Land Holdings Limited) and The People’s Insurance
Company (Group) of China Limited. He was formerly an independent
non-executive director of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited.
The shares of the above companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director
of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (formerly known as Wing Hang
Bank Limited, delisted from The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
with effect from 16 October 2014), Bank of China Group Insurance
Company Limited, BOC Group Life Assurance Company Limited, Nanyang
Commercial Bank Limited, Wing Hang Bank (China) Limited, a director of
Chu & Lau Nominees Limited, Sun Hon Investment and Finance Limited,
Wydoff Limited, Wytex Limited, Trillions Profit Investment Limited, Helicoin
Limited and Wyman Investments Limited. Mr. Lau was also the president
of the Law Society of Hong Kong, a board member of the Urban Renewal
Authority, a board member of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited and a member of the Commission on Strategic Development
of the Hong Kong Government, and served as a member of the Hong
Kong Legislative Council from 1995 to 2004 (being the member of the
Provisional Legislative Council from 1997 to 1998).

Mr. Lau Hon Chuen
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Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman of the Company)
Ms. Xia Yu (Executive Director of the Company)
Mr. Xu Weimin (Vice President of the Company)
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang
(Executive Director and President of the Company)
Ms. Li Li (Vice President of the Company)
Mr. Huang Bo (Executive Director of the Company)
Ms. Li Jing (Director of the subsidiaries)
Mr. Jiang Chang (General Manager of a subsidiary)
Mr. Wang Zhongmin (Executive Vice President of the subsidiaries)
Mr. Zhang Xiangrong (Director of the subsidiaries)
Mr. Yu Xiaofeng (Director of the subsidiaries)
Mr. Zhu Hengjin (Human Resource Manager of the Company)
Mr. Dong Zhenghua (In-house Legal Adviser of the Company)
Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Executive Director, Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company)
Ms. Fan Li (Chief Financial Officer of the subsidiaries)
Mr. Wang Xuguang (Chief Financial Officer of the subsidiaries)
Ms. Tong Xiaomeng (Director of the subsidiaries)
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Mr. Guo Cheng (ZF5), aged 29, studied in courses of international
trade in RMIT University. Mr. Guo has years of experience in investing and
corporate management of the cigarette packaging material industry. He is
currently the vice president of the Company. Mr. Guo Cheng is the son of
Mr. Guo, an executive Director and the step-son of Ms. Xia, an executive
Director.

Mr. Xu Weimin (5% ), aged 46, graduated from the Finance and
Economics School of Suzhou University and China Europe International
Business School, and received his Bachelor of Economics and Master of
Business Administration. Mr. Xu served as the Director of Finance and
Trade Division of Xuzhou Municipal Government in his early years, and
subsequently served as the Financial Controller in the affiliates under
China Resources. He joined the Group in 2012. He is currently the vice
president of the Company and in charge of investment businesses.

Mr. Ji Yishun (Z75]E), aged 54, was admitted into the Central Academy
of Craft Art (currently known as the Academy of Art and Design, Tsinghua
University in 1983. In his artist career, he has created hundreds of pieces
(sets) of boccaro teapot artwork. Mr. Ji is a master of Chinese ceramic
art, master of arts and crafts of Jiangsu Province, and one of the first
researcher-level senior craft artists in the PRC. Mr. Ji is a NPC member
of Jiangsu Province, member of the standing committee of NPC Yixing
Municipality, vice president of Ceramic Arts Committee of China Ceramic
Industry Association, member of China National Arts and Crafts society,
councilor of the Purple Industry Association, vice president of the Pot
Arts Professional Committee, and vice president of the Collection and
Appreciation Committee. He joined the Group in 2014 and is currently
vice president of the Company, responsible for business expansion of the
Group.

Ms. Li Li (2573), aged 31, received her Bachelor of Arts degree from
Sun Yat-sen University in 2006 and Master’s degree in media from the
University of Sydney in Australia in 2009. She worked in Phoenix TV of
Hong Kong and was responsible for international market operations.
She joined the Group in 2013. She is currently the vice president of the
Company and responsible for business development.
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Mr. Dong Zhenghua (%), aged 59, graduated from a self-taught
course in Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University (F3 R Al&5A
&) in 1986, and obtained the qualification certification as an economist
(#Z7%EM) in 1993. Mr. Dong passed the uniform examination organized
by the Chinese government authorities and obtained the qualifications
for enterprise legal adviser ({>%5%#£E8f) in 2003. Mr. Dong possesses
extensive experience in advising and handling corporate-related legal
matters. Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong graduated from a 2-year
course in laws jointly organised by the China University of Political Science
and Law (P EIBCE KXE) and the Open University of China (F R EEER
A£) and obtained the qualification of intermediate professional manager
as approved by the Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager
Training & Certification Committee (T& A DEBECIEATRERE
FIEERFEZ BE). Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal advisor of the
Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of the Group.

ok

Ms. Tong Xiaomeng (Z£Ei#f), aged 38, graduated from Jilin Railway
Economic School (FHMEFELCEER) in 1996, majoring in financial
accounting in transportation field. In 2002, Ms. Tong passed the
intermediate level of national examination of department of finance in
the PRC and was issued a certificate to certify her qualification level in
accountancy. Ms. Tong joined the Group in 2000 and is currently the
director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Jiangsu Shuntai. Ms. Tong possesses

extensive years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr. Yu Xiaofeng (E1#:1£), aged 51, graduated from Zhejiang Institute
of Engineering (#T TEPL) (which is currently known as Zhejiang
University of Technology) with a bachelor degree of science in 1983. Mr.
Yu joined the Group in 2002 and is currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen
Colour, Jiangsu Shuntai and Jiangsu Kingtai and also the chief technology
officer of Jiangsu Shuntai and Jiangsu Sheen Colour. Mr. Yu has extensive
experience in the technology aspect, production and facility management
of the printing related business. Mr. Yu was familiar with the technology
in connection with the printing of cigarette films and paper boxes.

Ms. Li Jing (22&), aged 34, passed the higher education self-taught
examination for economic management of the China University of Mining
and Technology (FFBITE % KX £2) in 2005. In 2009, Ms. Li graduated from
the distant-learning college of the School of the Central Committee
of Communist Party of China (4 2/ R B4 MR8 (K% ZP57), majoring
in economic management. Ms. Li joined the Group since 2002 and is
currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Jiangsu Kingtai.
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Mr. Jiang Chang (7I#), aged 43, studied applied chemistry (distant-
learning) and graduated from Hubei University in 2000. Mr. Jiang had
engaged in the packaging materials business for more than 10 years and
had in-depth experience in the production facilities and the production
management in relation to the manufacturing of BOPP films, in particular,
films for cigarette packaging. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in 2010. He is
currently the general manager of Qingdao Ener and is responsible for its
operation of production process.

Mr. Wang Xuguang (E£/E3), aged 35, graduated from Laiyang
Agricultural College in 2004, majoring in accounting. He has a bachelor’s
degree in management. Mr. Wang jointed the Group in November 2011
and is currently the chief financial officer of Qingdao Ener. Mr. Wang has
extensive experience in accounting and finance management.

Mr. Zhang Xiangrong (iR[@%), aged 49, graduated from Nanjing
Construction and Engineering College (currently known as Nanjing Tech
University) in 1989 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Since his
graduation, Mr. Zhang has been engaged in property development and
has extensive work experience. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in 2013 and is
currently a director and general manager of Xuzhou New Advantage Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd..

Mr. Wang Zhongmin (£ &), aged 43, graduated from Nanjing
University in 1994, majoring in economic management. He worked at
China Life, where he was engaged in life insurance business. Since 2001,
he has been involved in property related work. Mr. Wang is currently
the executive vice president of Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., responsible for project development.

Ms. Fan Li (58), aged 39, graduated from Jiangsu Radio and TV
University with a finance diploma in July 1997 and from Nanjing University
of Science and Technology in July 2002 with a bachelor’s degree, majoring
in finance. She has obtained the qualifications of middle-level accountant,
tax accountant and certified management accountant of the PRC. Ms.
Fan has been engaged in finance work for property companies for years
and has extensive experience in finance management and knowledge
of taxation. Ms. Fan Joined the Group on 1 February 2014 and is
currently the chief financial officer of Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhu Hengjin (4:181%), aged 28, obtained a certificate of diploma of
hairdressing salon management from Headmasters Advanced Academy
in 2008. In 2011, Mr. Zhu joined the Group and currently the human
resources manager of the Company.

LG SE 435 BEEERLEBCEERE) IR
2000 FREPFIERER o T RENEBEMHIEEHE
BI10F - i B FELEBOPPEE (LHEFEBES
RIMEERENEEEEHEELELR - TEERN
2010 FINAALE - RIEEFTERANEKE  8F
HEERRFFHERIE -

FIEY %4 - 358% 2004 F K5 B2 - TEEET
BEZE BHEEEBELEMN - TAAR2011F N
AMAREE - BRABSRAVHEBE - FAER
CHEMBER ARG LY ENEER

REEEGEAE - A95% 1989 F XN RERTRE
TR R TEAE)  WETEBELEN - RELKX
BREERFS—ENEFHEREIE  HELZEN
TR « REAR2013FEMARNER - WIF A%
NMITEDEHERBERARNES  TAKNNESEL
ERTARBIE -

THREEE, 4358 M19004AF EENE R K 2LHE
FEEE - DRBRTRASRRAR  HEERE
%o R2001 FRRHERMETIE - TREBRMTE AR
M EBEHERZERAREHIEY, BETR
FIE% o

SEELZ L 3958 1997 F T ARERNIHERSR
KEBEELE (KH) - 2002F7 AZERERELA
2 BMBEE (KRR - AERESHRE - HEE
FTRD - REGEMERERER - ARZFHERH
NAMBIE  BREENMBEECRLINBEE
He o B TR2014F2 B1 BMAXREER - BER
MIMEZLEHERZEHRARMBBE -

RAESREA » 2857 » 1R 2008 FHUF BT E H k157
BITRREDRREEIURRES < 20116 - RELMA
REE  REEEEARBANEREE -



B2z R EARD A

e
Corporate Governance Report
LLIL /‘\—/f \ ﬁ*:
PEENS :F& =
The Directors recognize the importance of incorporating elements of ERXAREBEMMEE - EAEBEEIREE LA

good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously observe the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group's corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code during the year ended 31 December 2014 except
for the deviation from code provision A.1.8 of the Code as stated below.

Under code provision A.1.8 of the Code, an issuer should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its directors.
With regular, timely and effective communications among the Directors
and the management of the Group, the management of the Group
believes that all potential claims and legal actions against the Directors can
be handled effectively, and the possibility of actual litigation against the
Directors is relatively low. The Company will review and consider to make
such arrangement as and when it thinks necessary.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

Appointment, Re-Election and Retirement of the
Directors

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation.

Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu and Mr. Huang Bo will retire as Directors at
the annual general meeting, and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Huang Bo and Mr. Bau Siu Fung,
all being executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 13 July
2012 and may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ prior written notice.
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Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing from 13
July 2012 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least three
months’ written notice.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, being executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of commencing from 1 January
2013 and expiring on 12 July 2015 and may be terminated by either party
by giving at least three months’ written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code") as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to
the date of this annual report.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises five executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which are set
out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (President)
Mr. Huang Bo

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy
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The brief biographic details of and relationship between the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 18 to 30.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and
(2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2014.
All independent non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for
assessment of their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Save as disclosed above, there
are no other relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of other
stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board's approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group's business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision D.3.1 of the Code. The Board has reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.
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Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior
to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views
at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments on the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and still considers the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent as at the date of this annual report.
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Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31 December 2014 are summarized as follows:

Board
meeting
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) DEREE(EE) 911
Ms. Xia Yu Bt 9/11
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (President) 5% (B 7744) 10/11
Mr. Huang Bo BREE 911
Mr. Bau Siu Fung LN Vit 1011
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. Fan Qing BT 911
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix FRELE 9
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy BERELE 911

Board Committees

The Board has established specific committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee currently has three
members comprising Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (being the Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all being independent
non-executive Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the final results of the Group for 2013 and the 2014 interim
results and report of the Company. The Audit Committee had reviewed
the Group’s internal controls for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2014 had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual report, and
confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2014. Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee at the
Audit Committee meetings are set out above.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms of the remuneration
package of each Director and member of senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof;
and (i) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual executive
Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable to them.
No Director shall participate in any discussion about his or her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
members, namely, Ms. Fan Qing (Chairperson), Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both
of which are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Guo Yumin,
an executive Director. The majority of members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration of
the Directors was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities within the Group and general market conditions. The
Company has adopted the Code to make recommendations to the Board
on remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the
members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2014. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meeting are set out above.

At the meeting, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives and
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with code
provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
include mainly: (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change;
(i) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and making recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; and (iii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
consists of three members, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman), an
executive Director, Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both of which
are independent non-executive Directors. The majority of members of the
Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2014. Details of the attendance of the Nomination
Committee meeting set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors, the progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy
and other related matters of the Company.

Diversity of the Board

The Group has adopted policy in relation to the diversity of the members
of the Board and the summary of the policy is as follows:

(1)  selection of Board members will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; and

(2)  the Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
diversity policy from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the
diversity policy.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.
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Professional Development of the Directors

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2014, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin, Mr. Zeng
Xiang Yang, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Huang Bo, Mr. Bau Siu Fung, Ms. Fan Qing,
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, had participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Directors had provided the relevant record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to
all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each Director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Group. All
the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating any suitable training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the year
ended 31 December 2014 falls within the following band:

RMB 1,000,000 or below

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the report of the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. There are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

External Auditor's Remuneration

The Company engaged KPMG as its external auditor for the year ended
31 December 2014. The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature
and the service charges of non-audit services for reviewing interim results
to be performed by KPMG and considered that these non-audit services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the auditor. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the fee payable to KPMG
in respect of its statutory audit services provided to the Company was
RMB1,780,000. Fees for non-audit services for the same period was
RMB300,000.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group's particular needs and the risks to which they are exposed.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper
accounting records and ensuring the reliability of financial information
used for business and publication. Qualified management of the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the Code in respect of internal controls during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

The Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary
Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

In order to keep Shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided
to the Shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The
Company has established its own corporate website www.sheentai.com
as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its Shareholders
and the public. The Company will continue to enhance communications
and relationships with its shareholders and investors. A shareholders
communication policy was adopted on 22 June 2012 to comply with code
provision E.1.4 of the Code.
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Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly
to the Company through the following e-mail: ivan.bau@sheentai.com.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

Bau Siu Fung

HK Address:  Room 1903,19/F Jubilee Centre. No.18 Fenwick Street,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: ivan.bau@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board
and/or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the Shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the articles of
association of the Company for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out above
in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’ Right to Convene an
Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person (other than a retiring Director) shall be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of
the intention to propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the Head Office or at the Registration Office no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director is posted on the website of the Company.

Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

There had been no significant changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the Shareholders this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 (the “Year").

Principal Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Results

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 59 of this annual report.

Final Dividends

The Board recommends a payment of final dividend of HK$0.08 per Share
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$0.08 per share).

Closure of the Register of Members

For determining entitlement to attend the AGM, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 14 May 2015 (Thursday) to 18 May
2015 (Monday), both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. The record date will be 18 May 2015 (Monday).
In order to qualify for attending the forthcoming AGM, all transfers of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 13 May 2015 (Wednesday).

For determining entitlement to the proposed final dividend (if approved
at the AGM), the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 22 May 2015 (Friday) to 26 May 2015 (Tuesday), both days inclusive.
The record date will be 26 May 2015 (Tuesday). In order to qualify for
the entitlement of the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2015 (Thursday).
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Bank Borrowings

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014 are
set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements in this annual report and
the Prospectus, is set out on page 160. This summary does not form part
of the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of HK$92.5
million (2013: HK$77.9 million) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity in this annual report.

Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant Investment

On 4 April 2014, the Company entered into an agreement (as
supplemented by a supplemental deed dated 16 May 2014) with Mr.
Guo Yumin (the chairman, an executive director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company) for the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Sheen Tai International Investment Ltd. at a consideration of
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HK$165,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The consideration was satisfied by
the Company issuing a convertible bond, which can be converted into
99,517,490 ordinary shares of the Company at the initial conversion price
of HK$1.658.

The Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Besides, as Mr. Guo
Yumin is the chairman, an executive director and a controlling shareholder
of the Company, he is a connected person of the Company and the
Acquisition also constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Acquisition was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 12 June 2014, and was
completed on 30 June 2014. The Company has made an early repayment
of an aggregate principal amount of HK$95,000,000, and as at the date
of this announcement, the aggregate outstanding principal amount is
HK$70,000,000.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 4 April 2014, 29 April 2014, 16 May 2014, 12 June 2014 and 30
June 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 21 May 2014.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and associated companies during the year ended 31
December 2014.

Material Related Parties Transactions

The material related party transactions in relation to the key management
personnel remuneration for the Directors as disclosed in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report are connected
transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.95 of the
Listing Rules.

The material related party transactions in relation to the amount due to
controlling Shareholder and Director — Mr. Guo Yumin as disclosed in
Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report
are connected transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.90 of the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material related
party transactions disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report did not fall under the definition of
“connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as
the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 February 2013, Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd. (&
EHABERB AR AR (“Qingdao Ener”) (an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a written agreement (the
" Agreement”) with Qingdao Justo Packaging Co., Ltd. (&3 28 £ AR
23 a]) ("Qingdao Justo”), a connected person (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company, in relation to the purchase of cigarette films by
Qingdao Justo from Qingdao Ener. The transaction amount contemplated
under the Agreement, when aggregated with the past transaction amount
from 1 January 2013, constituted a continuing connected transaction. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
28 February 2013. The abovementioned sales were completed on 27
March 2013.

Subsequently, Qingdao Ener had continued to sell cigarette films to
Qingdao Justo, which, in aggregate, constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions. Due to the misunderstanding of the management
of the Group regarding the shareholding structure of Qingdao Justo at
the relevant time, the Company has omitted to comply with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for such sales.

On 19 March 2014, Qingdao Ener and Qingdao Justo entered into an
agreement (the “2014 Agreement”) in respect of the sale of cigarette
films by Qingdao Ener to Qingdao Justo. The 2014 Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder, when aggregated with past
transaction amount from 1 January 2014, constitute continuing connected
transactions. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 19 March 2014.

On 28 August 2014, Qingdao Ener entered into an agreement with
Qingdao Justo (the “2014 New Agreement”), pursuant to which Qingdao
Justo shall purchase not more than 3,584.31 tonnes of cigarette films from
Qingdao Ener for a period from the date of the 2014 New Agreement
until 31 December 2014 with a total consideration of not more than
RMB74,034,550.62 (equivalent to approximately HK$91,400,680).
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As described above, Qingdao Justo is an associate of Shenzhen Jinjia color
Printing Group Co., Ltd. (RINSZF EEE KRN BR AT (“Shenzhen
Jinjia”) and thus a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Therefore, The transaction contemplated under the 2014 New
Agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction of the
Company which was subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements, but was exempt from independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details
of the 2014 New Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 August 2014.

On 4 February 2015, Qingdao Ener entered into an agreement with
Qingdao Justo (the “2015 New Agreement”), pursuant to which
Qingdao Justo shall purchase not more than 1,089.45 tonnes of cigarette
films from Qingdao Ener for a period from the date of the 2015 New
Agreement until 31 December 2015 with a total consideration of not
more than RMB24,891,556.04 (including value added tax) (equivalent to
approximately HK$30,840,637.93).

As described above, Qingdao Justo is an associate of Shenzhen lJinjia
and thus a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Therefore, The transaction contemplated under the 2015 New Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company which
was subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements,
but was exempt from independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For further details of the 2015
New Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 4 February 2015.

Subsequent Events

Disposal of the Equity Interest of Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging &
Printing Science Technology Co., Ltd.

On 15 January 2015, Sheen China Group Holdings Limited (JIE % £5 [
&BBR A a]) (the “Vendor”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Chinese Hongkong International Tobacco Group Co., Limited (FF 2
EBBEBEELEAFR A A]) (the “Purchaser”) entered into an equity
transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to
sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase the 51% equity
interest in Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science Technology Co.,
Ltd. GT %R B 2= 8 % BRI B 5 A R A 7)) (the “Target Company”) at a
consideration of RMB325,000,000, which will be satisfied in cash (the
“Disposal”). Upon completion of the Disposal, the Company will not hold
any interest in the Target Company and the Target Company will cease to
be a subsidiary of the Company.
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The Purchaser is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Jinjia Color
Printing Group Co., Ltd. ORI EhF=F ENE B x5 B R 2 7)) (“Shenzhen
Jinjia”), which holds the remaining 49% equity interest in the Target
Company before the Disposal and thus a substantial shareholder and
a connected person of the Group before the Disposal. The Purchaser is
an associate of Shenzhen Jinjia and hence a connected person at the
subsidiary level (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The Disposal therefore constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the Disposal exceeds 75%, the Disposal
constitutes a very substantial disposal for the Company pursuant
to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting,
announcement and the Shareholders’ approval requirements.

The Disposal had been approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 9 March
2015. For details of the Disposal, please refer the announcements of the
dated 26 January 2015 and 9 March 2015 respectively and the circular of
the Company dated 17 February 2015.

Grant of Share Options

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to subscribe for
a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Company under
the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 June 2012.

Among the share options granted above, 2,100,000 share options were
granted to the Directors to subscribe for a total of 2,100,000 shares of the
Company. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
29 January 2015.

The Placing

On 6 February 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
Orient Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”), whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing Agent, on a best effort
basis, a maximum of 83,000,000 new shares of the Company (the “Placing
Shares”) to not less than six placees at a price of HK$2.66 per Placing
Share (the “Placing”). The Placing was completed on 26 February 2015.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 6
February 2015 and 26 February 2015.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
85% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 64% of the total sales for
the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 70% of the total purchases for the Year and purchase from
the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
36% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Directors

The Directors are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (President)
Mr. Huang Bo

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Article of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting after his/her appointment and any
Director appointed by the Board as an additional Director shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles of the Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation.
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Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu and Mr. Huang Bo will retire as Directors at
the AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Huang Bo and Mr. Bau Siu Fung,
all being executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 13 July
2012 and may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing from 13
July 2012 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least three
months’ written notice.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, being an executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term commencing from 1 January
2013 and expiring on 12 July 2015 and may be terminated by either party
by giving at least three months’ written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Biographies of Directors and Other Senior Management

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 18 to 30 of this annual report.

Directors Emoluments

Details of the Directors Emoluments are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.

Interests of Directors in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.
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No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders or
any of its subsidiaries.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates had any interest
in a business which competes or likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

The Board has established a committee (the “Committee”) comprising
all the independent non-executive Directors which was delegated with
the authority to review the non-competition undertakings (the “Non-
competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited (IIE
ZREE IR AR AF]) (“Sheentai BVI”) and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo”)
in a deed of non-competition entered into by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo
in favour of the Company, dated 28 June 2012. The Committee was not
aware of any non-compliance of the Non-competition Undertakings given
by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
up to the date of this annual report.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible employees in
the PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employee in
Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately
HK$438 million.
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Directors’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(a

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of the
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares and in the Shares

EERNRG - HERORESZNESZN

N -
RB

(a

H2014F 12 A31H » ARREFXZmRTTH
ABRARBIREFMAEEZE(FERES
NMEAE D ([ FH RS EG]]) B XVER) K A%
7 BERO REHRT - BHEREES K
EIEPIEXVEE 7 M8nBAE A DA KB
FTEiER MoA B (RIEIREBEES RREKIZE
B E ESR AR 2 TS SAR) » 3k
BIRIE R R HE R0 58 352 I B R R s 16 AIT
BECMAES AR - SRE EMHRAZ E
MAREBETESF R ZNEETAAENG A
AR LB RFR R OKBIAT

() RERHZFERRH

Number of Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested interest
Fii ®E e g
EEnE 54, e EaROEE HE
Mr. Guo Interest of a controlled corporation 300,000,000 71.88%
EIS s (Note 1)
Rt EEER (Mt 1)
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 47,119,541 11.29%
BEnkB A (Hit2)
Interest of Spouse (Notes 3 and 4) 1,500,000 0.36%
BBk (M3 % 4)
Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia") Interest of spouse (Note 5) 347,119,541 83.18%
BER(TExz+]) BeiS e (M3 5)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) 1,500,000 0.36%
BEnkB A (H:3)
Zeng Xiangyang (“Mr. Zeng") Beneficial owner (Note 6) 500,000 0.12%
Bk ([ B4 ]) BnEBA(Hit6)
Huang Bo Beneficial owner (Note 7) 375,000 0.09%
=K BEmfa A Hit7)
Bau Siu Fung Beneficial owner (Note 8) 375,000 0.09%
/g BEnikEB A (H:E8)
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(i) Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of Associated (ii)
Corporation

Number of
Name of associated share held/ Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity/Nature interested interest
Fiss A
EEgE HBEEEE 55, tHE EaROEE EREDL
Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1 100%
B EmBEAA
Ms. Xia (Note 5) Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse 1 100%
B+ (f1:E5) feiB s
Notes: BffEE -

Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Sheentai
BVI. Therefore, Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all
300,000,000 Shares held by Sheentai BVI for the purposes of the SFO.
Mr. Guo is the sole director of Sheentai BVI.

These 47,119,541 Shares/underlying Shares represent the 4,525,000
Shares owned by Mr. Guo, the 375,000 Shares which may be allotted
and issued to Mr. Guo upon full exercise of the options granted to
him under the pre-IPO share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 22 June 2012 (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”, each share
option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is referred to
as "Pre-IPO Share Option”) and the 42,219,541 Shares which may be
allotted and issued to Mr. Guo upon full exercise of the convertible
bonds in the outstanding principal amount of HK$70,000,000 at the
initial conversion price of HK$1.658 per Share held by Mr. Guo.

These 1,500,000 Shares/underlying Shares represent the 375,000
Shares which may be allotted and issued to Madam Xia upon
full exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted to her, and the
1,125,000 Shares owned by Madam Xia.

Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in all Shares in which Ms. Xia is interested.

Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in all Shares in which Mr. Guo is interested in
for the purpose of the SFO.

These 500,000 Shares/underlying Shares represent the 125,000
Shares owned by Mr. Zeng and the 375,000 Shares which may be
allotted and issued to Mr. Zeng upon full exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted to him.

These 375,000 underlying Shares represent the 375,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Huang upon full exercise of the Pre-
IPO Share Options granted to him.

These 375,000 underlying Shares represent the 375,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Bau upon full exercise of the Pre-
IPO Share Options granted to him.

1.

20 % 4 & %5 % A Sheentai BVIH) & 28 2 3 1T
A Ett RIEFHFREBEE - 365E
A48 & sk E VB Sheentai BVIF B B FT A
300,000,000 i R B HEwm - BEER
Sheentai BVIFYE—=F »

147,119,541 B A& 15, 18 BA AR 15 18 1 26 %5 £
#8 2 4,525,000 8% §& {5 375,000 f% A% 1 &
RIE2012F 6 A22 BRMN E X AHEER
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(b)  So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2014, the (b) EESA - N2014F 128318 L TA L

following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the (EX@BMEBECAARESTIARSITHA
Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had interests or SRERIN) IR SARRANR () P B IR 5 I H
short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to BIEHIEXVEE 2 RE 3D MBRIEXBRAR
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the AN RENERSAE  SEFESEE
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who are, AN EERN MBS T EAEETE
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal fbp B R AR ARG HIRBAEMEERI R
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all E{E 10% A EayfERR ¢
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group:
The Company RRAF
Number of Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
Capacity/Nature of interest interested shareholding
iEc e o)
B REREE ERBRHOHE RETDLAE
Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 300,000,000 71.88%
E=EAA
Other Members of the Group AEENEMRE AT
Name of Percentage of
Name of subsidiary shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shareholding
i) PN IREREHE B ERNE RERDLL
Jiangsu Shuntai Shenzhen Jinjia Beneficial owner 49%
T ERIEZR Color Printing EmEA A

Group Co., Ltd.
SRR HEE

Mt BBR AT
Jiangsu Shuntai Qiao Lu Yu Interest of a controlled corporation 49%
TTERIEZR BET REEEE R

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company B EXFT#EESN - 72014512 A31 8 - #HEEM
had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief =~ AT (RATEFHHZESITBRAERIN) HERAFTE
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in  FID AR B 1D R #E B ZBR IR H LB IR B XV
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to ~ #882 RE 3D E 2 EXMARFHKTE + ki AXRQ
the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of ~ AIRIEFEH R EKIIE 336 KR EFE 2 E LM
the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept ~ #EmFAR °

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

Share Option Schemes

(a)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) adopted on 22 June 2012, the Company had
granted options to subscribe for 10,000,000 Shares to employees,
directors, consultants and advisers of our Group.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:

ESWBROIEZVER

BEXTESENRD  BEROREFORESIX
Bl —BARBEEIN  RAFEEMEER  ARF -
HERRR] - MB A BKRRHE A RL BT ER
ZHE EARBEETRHZDTRABREBEATE
BRI R R SAT A EAAA BB R S E S M

= °

B AESTE

(a) BERDMBEABERETE
RIE2012F 6 A 22 BRMANE XN ARESHIEE
REiERT 2 ([ A EmERETE]) &
N B 7% AT 288 10,000,000 RS 17 B B A% 1 1%
FAEERE - BF  AAAKLEM -

MRAFHREH - RIBEERAMBEER B
I ARTTEMBIREFIEHIIMT

Number of
options Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding
granted on since date since date since date  as at the date
Name of grantee 22 June 2012 of grant of grant of grant  of this report
R2012F
6H22A RERAH RERAH REZBH REFHEH
EBRARE BRERERR BATHRE 2 BAX fe RATHE
Director EF
Mr. Guo Eilp e 500,000 125,000 - - 375,000
Ms. Xia Bt 500,000 125,000 - - 375,000
Zeng Xiangyang LRf5 500,000 125,000 - - 375,000
Huang Bo R 500,000 125,000 - - 375,000
Bau Siu Fung /g 500,000 125,000 - - 375,000
Employees and advisers ESREME 7,500,000 1,711,250 - - 5,788,750
Total Ch 10,000,000 2,336,250 - - 7,663,750
Note: MHET

The subscription price for Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is HK$0.6029 per Share. Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall vested in 5 tranches in the proportion of 10%, 15%, 20%,
25% and 30% on 14 July 2013, 14 July 2014, 14 July 2015, 14 July
2016 and 14 July 2017, and shall expire on 13 July 2018, being the sixth
anniversary of the date of initial listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange.

A summary of the principal terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is set out in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

BRAREENEREAETRONREEALTR
0.6029 77T * IRIFE X ARE SR BREEIR TN
BERYHEZE D FIHELA10% ~ 15% ~ 20% ~ 25% [ 30%
RILL Bl B 201347 148 ~ 201447 A 148 ~
201547 148 ~ 201657 4148 K 20177 A
14 BRFAEZA - W7 20184E7 A 13 B (B D
PR ATE R LT B HBRRET BN E) -

BIRAFIEE AR S 8] 2 R S AR OB 2 8
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(b) Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 22 June 2012. A summary of the principal terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme is set out in Appendix V to
the Prospectus.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to
subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company were granted to certain Directors and employees
of the Company under the Share Option Scheme. Among the share
options granted above, 2,100,000 share options were granted to
the Directors to subscribe for a total of 2,100,000 shares of the
Company. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 29 January 2015.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed approximately 437 full-
time staff members. The Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in
kind and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our performance. The
Group also established the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme to incentivize the senior management and employees,
further details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Schemes” in this report. When reviewing and determining the
specific remuneration packages for the executive Directors and senior
management, the Company takes into consideration factors such as their
individual performance, qualification, experience and seniority, salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment elsewhere in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Group determines the staff's
remuneration based on factors such as qualifications and work experience.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 31 to 40 of this annual report.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.
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Directors’ Report

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from the independent non-executive Directors
confirmations of independence (including an annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules) and considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent of the Company.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this annual report as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

KPMG has acted as auditors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014. The Company has not changed its external auditors
during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this
report.

KPMG will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the

reappointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
CAvE 2 GliESen

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 58 to 159, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB E ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= N\ 7

=
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EE 2014512 A31 BIEFE GABTTAEN)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Turnover EE 201 3 712,534 706,134
Cost of sales HEK AR (430,286) (439,487)
Gross profit EF 282,248 266,647
Other revenue and net income EAb YA RS 4 25,950 12,777
Distribution costs DR (14,777) (15,392)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (76,354) (67,943)
Other operating expenses HEA R E RS (8,100) (624)
Profit from operations BEBRR 208,967 195,465
Finance costs B 7 AR A 5(a) (18,366) (19,645)
Profit before taxation BiAD= A 5 190,601 175,820
Income tax FTiSis 6(a) (39,497) (47,489)
Profit for the year FREF 151,104 128,331
Attributable to: DA AT FEf

Equity shareholders of the Company PN 92,507 77,934

Non-controlling interests eI 58,597 50,397
Profit for the year FEREF 151,104 128,331
Earnings per share sRER
Basic (HKD) BERCGET) 11 0.22 0.19
Diluted (HKD) BECET) 11 0.21 0.19
The notes on pages 65 to 159 form part of these financial statements. FIERHA 5 65 & 159 B M B 15 R 3= Ml sk = A B 75 3

EHAERCERDD
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

AreiBm M A RS

HZE2014%12 A31 BILFE ABTAENM)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Profit for the year FEREF 151,104 128,331
Other comprehensive income FRAHEMEEWRE -
for the year, net of tax BB
Items that may be reclassified to TREEH D EREE
profit or loss: KIEHE :
Exchange differences on translation of BREM B AR HRE
financial statements of subsidiaries RODE =58 10(a) 1,145 10,230
Available-for-sale financial assets: HEESHEE
net movement in the fair value reserve NHERENFEEE 10(b) (3,505) 3,505
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEEKE (2,360) 13,735
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEMB AT 148,744 142,066
Attributable to: BTN A B4
Equity shareholders of the Company A AR 89,861 89,511
Non-controlling interests FEEAR i 2 58,883 52,555
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEZHEBRERE 148,744 142,066

The notes on pages 65 to 159 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SRR ER

2014412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current assets REEE
Fixed assets EE&E
— Property, plant and equipment - W% - WE REE 12 188,573 318,069
— Interests in leasehold land held for own - BEEEHEREE RN
use under operating lease HE TR 12 23,148 44,830
Intangible assets AR 125 544
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHECREE 14 = 23,702
Deferred tax assets EETIBEE 23 6,473 4,242
218,319 391,387
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 15 323,555 102,578
Trade and other receivables B 5 W R IA F B Ath FE I R IE 16 186,383 256,782
Restricted cash SBRHIR & 19 18,950 49,704
Assets classified as held for sale NEAFBEREEE 28 330,650 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRELEEEE 17 117,049 61,179
976,587 470,243
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 ENRIE
K E A FEAST R 18 221,455 88,089
Bank loans RITEK 19 211,273 271,091
Financial liabilities at fair value through RAFER A&
profit or loss HEmaE 20 1,891 =
Convertible bond — interest payable AARES - EAFE 20 2,830 =
Current taxation BIHARE IR 23 2,982 24,195
Liabilities classified as held for sale DEABBEFERE 28 139,770 =
580,201 383,375
Net current assets RBEEFE 396,386 86,868
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
REPBARE (@)

2014412 A 31 B UAHE T RER)
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank loans RITEN 19 878 1,083
Convertible bond AR E S 20 66,329 =
Deferred tax liabilities RETIAEE 23 10,770 4,303
Deferred government grants IRIETS T B = 639
77,977 6,025
NET ASSETS REE 536,728 472,230
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFHE
Share capital A& 24 4,173 4,150
Reserves G 24 437,695 378,339
Total equity attributable to equity RN ERE S IR R R (L
shareholders of the Company s 441,868 382,489
Non-controlling interests B 94,860 89,741
TOTAL EQUITY fERBE 536,728 472,230

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March W BBWEE R 2015F 3 431 BEEFFHAEWFF

2015. AIEE o
) )
Guo Yumin ) BER )
) Directors ) EBEE
Bau Siu Fung ) fifl/ 2 )
) )
The notes on pages 65 to 159 form part of these financial statements. FUHASE 65 = 159 B M ISR MR AT SRS 1
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Statement of Financial Position
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B AR 2R
2014412 A31 B (BT AER)

At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current assets RBEE
Investment in subsidiaries AT B A TR E 13 249,955 84,955
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE 14 = 23,702
249,955 108,657
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 WGk IA K H A R W R IR 16 130,911 143,795
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFSFEIER 17 26,217 131
157,128 143,926
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables L) ANE/CED
Hh fE TR 18 118,889 709
Bank loans RITEMN 19 - 41,500
Financial liabilities at fair value through NAFEFEEEE
profit or loss STAERHBEENERBE 20 1,891 -
Convertible bond — interest payable AR ES - ERALE 20 2,830 -
123,610 42,209
Net current assets RBEERE 33,518 101,717
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARE 283,473 210,374
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Convertible bond AR ES 20 66,329 =
NET ASSETS FEE 217,144 210,374
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFHE
Share capital %N 24 4,173 4,150
Reserves et 24 212,971 206,224
TOTAL EQUITY fERBR 217,144 210,374

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March

2015.

Guo Yumin

Bau Siu Fung

The notes on pages 65 to 159 form part of these financial statements.

)
)
)
)
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Directors
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SPAN vl
,Z\\/ N \’E J/Ilix %b i%
EE 2014512 A31 BIEFE GABTTAEN)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AATRERFES
Non-
Share Share  Capital  Statutory  Exchange  Fairvalue  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  Subtotal interests equity
FER
Bx  ROEE ErEE  AERE  EXRE ATERE  REEA it i 48
§/000 §/000 §/000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000
Thr T B T AT ThL AT ThI AT Tim
1 January 2013 RWBEIA1R 4150 136% 69054 34668 334 - 85 333505 6108 394533
Changes in equity for 2013 BEENBEREY
Profit for the year ERa - - - - - - T T 50397 1833
Other comprehensive income A2 10 - - - - 8072 3505 - nsm 218 1373
Total comprehensive income FENGREE = = - - 8072 3505 77934 89511 555 142,066
Dividends to shareholders et 2() = = = = = - (415000 (415000 (Q7548)  (69,048)
Appropriation to ARBERGE
statutory reserve i) - - - 2672 - - (2672 - - -
Captalnjecton from FilERRRE
non-controlling interests
shareholders - - - - - - - - 3,706 3,706
Equity-settled share-based WRAEEL R A
{ransactons ARG 24(d)i) - - 9 - - - - 93 - 97
At 31 December 2013 ROB3EN2ANA 4150 136% 70027 37,340 11413 3505 13238 489 89TM 472030
1 January 2014 R20145151R 4150 1236% 70,027 37,300 11413 3505 132358 382489 89,741 412,230
Changes in equity for 2014 BENUERESD
Profit or the year EmiH - - - - - - 807 Q507 %857 151,104
Other comprehensive income A2 ElE 10 - - - - 859 (3509 - (68 8 (2360
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE = = = = 859 (3505) 9507 89,861 58883 148744
Dividends to shareholders BREE 24b) - - - - - - (38 (3253 (3764 @7017)
Appropriation to AREEERR
statutory reserve i 24 - - - 3,174 - - (3.174) - - -
Shares ssued under share FEERETHEN
option scheme 0] ‘ ue B 3w (1819 - - - - 14 - 148
Equitysettled share-based WEREE R
fransactions RS 2A4(d)i = = 1363 = = = = 1363 = 1363
At 31 December 2014 R01UEN2A3A 4173 126900 69571 40514 12212 - 188438 M1868 480 536728
The notes on pages 65 to 159 form part of these financial statements. FIEAZE 65 F 159 B MM ISk M R AN S ImE#
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
==JAN PANy = — 1
% \éiﬁi/ﬁiﬁ
EE 2014512 A31 BIEFE GABTTAEN)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Operating activities RETER
Cash generated from operations %Q%ﬁﬁ?%fﬁﬁ 17(b) 155,877 224,678
Income taxes paid B ATSH 23(a) (61,197) (43,711)
Net cash generated from operating activities Q& EB SR & FE 94,680 180,967
Investing activities REEH
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets and BE Eéf@g

intangible assets Aﬁﬁ?ﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁﬁt (22,294) (8,224)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets & B B ES A 92 80
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale HEMHEEDA

financial assets ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%’(ﬁ 29,679 =
Dividends received from investment in securities EWEFIZER S 1,549 =
Acquisition of a subsidiary NI 27(b)(1) 830 -
Payment for purchase of Eﬁﬁfﬁ?—tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁé

available-for-sale financial assets K SRIE - (20,197)
Interest received BEIFLE 2,419 1,123
Net cash generated/(used) in REEHESLE(FA)

investing activities REFE 12,275 (27,218)
Financing activities AEEE
Proceeds from borrowings %fkﬁﬁ?ﬁa‘?ﬁlﬁ 460,955 281,924
Repayment of borrowings 1_%?@%%’( . (286,489) (319,602)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ‘i‘f‘i%_']ﬁ@)ﬁi?/ (125n) 30,754 (49,704)
Shares issued Ei%f?ﬁ%ﬁ » 1,408 =
Payment for redemption of convertible bond FE [0 AR EH R (95,000) =
Interest paid BEAFIE (17,438) (19,645)
Dividends paid BflRe (87,017) (69,048)
Capital injection from non-controlling IR AR EEE

interests shareholder - 3,706
Net cash generated/(used) in BEEERELE(FTA)

financing activities REFE 7.173 (172,369)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BHeRBEELEEER

and cash equivalents #in, ORd) B8 114,128 (18,620)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1B1BNEER

R&%HEER 61,179 79,180
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSFHTE (311) 619
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 712 f] 31THNBEER
SRATAEERAEEE 174,996 61,179

Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBESEEERN

cash equivalents ERER D AT
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHER 17(a) 117,049 61,179
Cash and bank balances classified PBERFAFERE

as assets held for sale KR & RIRTTAE R 28 57,947 =
Total cash and bank balances & MIRI TSR AREE 174,996 61,179

The notes on pages 65 to 159 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT M wt

M 2014412 A31 B (AT AEAL)

At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GENERAL INFORMATION 1

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries
hereinafter are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The
Company'’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 13 July 2012.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in
accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for
Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76
to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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R 2014912 31 B UABTTAEN)

At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation of the

consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), rounded to the nearest thousand. The measurement
basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except financial instruments classified
as available-for-sale (see note 2(e)), which are stated at their
fair value.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 2(w)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 29.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company:

° Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

o Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

. HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs are
discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27, Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as defined
in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are required
to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss. These amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the Company does not qualify to be
an investment entity.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in
HKAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as they are consistent with the policies
already adopted by the Group.

HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to
pay a levy imposed by a government should be recognised.
The amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the guidance is consistent with the Group’s
existing accounting policies.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance
with notes 2(n) or (0) depending on the nature of the liability.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at lost less impairment losses (see
note 2(j)). Unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(see note 2(w)).

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in
note 2(t)(iv) and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses.

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)). Dividend income from
equity securities and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in
notes 2(t)(iv) and (v), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt
securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(j)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the group commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(j)-

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

()

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and machinery and equipment
under installation and testing. Construction in progress is
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)). The cost includes cost of
construction, cost of purchased plant and equipment and
other direct costs plus borrowing costs which include interest
charges and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings used to finance these projects during the
construction period, to the extent that these are regarded as
an adjustment to borrowing costs (see note 2(v)).

Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time
as the assets are completed and substantially ready for their
intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(j)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

(j). Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events.

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j). Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (continued)

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j). Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EXEEEEK(E)

() Impairment of assets (continued) () EEREGE)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) AEE REFZHFAHAERRER
securities and other receivables (continued) ERRE (&)

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- construction in progress

- prepaid interest in leasehold land classified as
being held under operating lease;

- intangible assets; and

- Investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

Inventories

(i)

Packaging materials manufacturing and trading

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

Inventories (continued)

(ii)

Property development

Inventories in respect of property development activities
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost and net realisable values are determined as
follows:

Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified cost,
including the acquisition cost of land, aggregate
cost of development, materials and supplies,
wages and other direct expenses, an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.
Completed property held for resale

In the case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(j)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Convertible bond

Convertible bond can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder.

At initial recognition the embedded derivative component
of the convertible bond is measured at fair value. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
embedded derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. All of the transaction costs that relate to the
issue of the convertible bond are recognised initially as part of
the liability component.

At the end of each reporting period, the embedded derivative
component is remeasured, the gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method.

If the bond is converted, the carrying amounts of the
embedded derivative and liability components are transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration for
the shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, any difference
between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of both
components is recognised in profit or loss.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contribution to
defined contributions retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
these benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Group or Company has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or Company intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for sale
is recognised upon the later of the signing of the sale
and purchase agreement and the completion of the
properties, which is taken to be the point in time when
the risks and rewards of ownership of the property
have passed to the buyer. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of financial
position under forward sales deposits and instalments
received.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(v)

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
outside mainland China is Hong Kong dollars and the
functional currency of the subsidiaries in mainland China is
Renminbi. The results of operations with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far
as the financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(x) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

()

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(a)

(0)

(d)

(e)

()

(9

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

2 EXGFEEE)

(x) EBEAL

() FEAUTERT  RALHEIRR
FERK B SRS B A Rk

(a)

(b)

(0)

(i) FEUATEEBERT @ £

AR R AL E

HASEEEATEN 3

I

RAEENAREEEREH
TEERAEHKE -
i

REEAK

EA R

(@

(e)

)

(9)

ZERBMAEEYBR &
E &R B AR (BIREAE] - H
BRBARERMBLREB
HE M A RARE) o

RERES - EROBEL
ANAEAT (RZ—EEA
B AT M EEE MK E A
AMBEATRABAT) -
MREREBR— =71
AEAF -
ERBECSERNA Y
ARMS—ERAIBRE=
FEENHEAT -
SEETE R EIER T A
EENEAEEARBOE
TBE00E B OB BT 2 -

ZERBXO)ETAHRHA
TR IR o

() E o BT 8B A £ 3
ZEREEAVES X
ATBRER (AEREEN
AR HEBEEABNR

=
B o

EHEYEZRALTRRIZBALHE
MIREMKE °



Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR B 5

2014412 A31 B (CABTRE)
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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2014412 A 31 B UAHE T RER)
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EXBERIHESE
(a) Turnover (a) &%

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and AEENETEZEFARENHESTER
supply of cigarette paper boxes, cigarette films and other 8 BEFERHEMTISMANEE - A
marketing films and development of properties in the PRC. RIERBEAMMEEREE -

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less returns, EEHEIREMEEEERESE - T
discounts and value added taxes and other sales taxes. The EFREMEETR - RAEEDNEE
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in BFERANSEZWABERNSEAT -

turnover during the year is as follows:

Manufacturing and sales of EHEER

cigarette-related packaging BEEM B

materials

— Cigarette paper boxes -BERE 304,748 42.8 289,565 41.0

— Anti-counterfeiting films - PR 92,722 13.0 72,281 10.2

— Other cigarette films - Hh B EEE 178,894 25.1 146,355 20.7
Sub-total NET 576,364 80.9 508,201 71.9
Trading of imported films EOEERE S 46,323 6.5 78,267 11.1
Manufacturing and sales of EHIFE EAERE

non-cigarette-related BEMR

packaging materials 89,847 12.6 119,666 17.0
Sub-total N 712,534 100.0 706,134 100.0
Sales of properties MEHE - - = =

Total A&r 712,534 100.0 706,134 100.0
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2014412 A 31 B ABTTABAL)
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Turnover (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there were 2 (2013: 2)
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenues. Revenues from sales to these customers,
including sales to entities which are known to the Group
to be under common control with these customers (i.e. the
sales to different customers are viewed as a single customer
if the relevant sales were made to various customers under
common control), amounted to approximately $531,301,000,
and $571,816,000 for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2014 respectively. Details of concentrations of credit risk
arising from these customers are set out in note 25(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed as below:

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments.

o Cigarette-related packaging materials: this segment
sells and manufactures cigarette packages and cigarette
packaging films;

o Non-cigarette-related packaging materials: this segment
sells and manufactures non-cigarette-related packing
materials (e.g. films for packing straws, food, cassettes
and stationery tapes); and

o Development of properties: this segment develops and
sells residential properties.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following basis:
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets. Segment liabilities include trade
creditors, accruals and bills payable attributable to the
manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by
the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is set out below.
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Cigarette related ~ Non-cigaretterelated ~ Development of

packaging materials packaging materials properties

EEEBaRAE  FEEREaLMH EL T

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

WAE  0BE  04F  NBE  WUE  0BE

§'000 §/000 §'000 §'000 §/000

TEn  TEr TR Tén T
Revenue from extemal customers RENIER UG 622687 586,468 89847 119,666 - - T4 706,13
Reportable segment revenue TREABRA 622,687 585468 89,847 119666 - - 12534 706,134
Reportable segment gross profit TREAHEH 3192 254080 9056 12567 - - 8228 266647
Reportable segment profit TRRABRAEA
before taxation 188621 173990 1980 1,830 - - 190601 175820
Interest income from bank deposits Bt EE 231 108 34 3 8 Y N RVE
Finance costs BEnE Ha30 1555 1891 4050 2,045 - 18366 19665
Depreciation and amortisation ENREREH
for the year 26,061 25745 5748 7393 12 - 393 BIN
Reportable segment assets TREIHEE 78475 684691 161901 175510 245201 - 1191858 860,201
Additions to non-Current segment ERRENERSNHEE
assets during the year 16,285 5,067 5,636 279 851 - nm 5346
Reportable segment liabilities TEHAHER 32619 284409 98301 104129 205743 - 656,663 383538
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 3 EXIENDIXELE (F)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) P2 (E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment assets and (i) THRERIBNWEEREBENYIER
liabilities

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR FEE 1,191,858 860,201
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE E 3,048 1,429
Consolidated total assets REBEBE 1,194,906 861,630
Liabilities af&
Reportable segment liabilities A E25R 5> 2R E (& 656,663 388,538
Current taxation BREATH IH 586 473
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEAE 929 389
Consolidated total liabilities 454 B{&42%E 658,178 389,400
(iii) Geographic information (iii) HIEEHR

No geographic information is shown as the turnover AR AEERE TS EERE MR
and profit from operations of the Group are derived FIREERPRER - hiERE
from its activities in the PRC. TRIBIBERL o

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 4 HMWARFEWRE

(a) Other revenue (a) HauwgA

Interest income F B Wz 2,419 1,123
Government grants AT 48 B 575 766
Dividend income from listed securities 7 585 H B S YA 1,549 =

4,543 1,889
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME (CONTINUED) 4 HMWARZFWE (&)
(b) Other net income (b) HMFWA

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain X (F58) W F8 (908) 420
Sales of scrap materials SHEER 12,505 10,239
Gain on sale of available-for-sale HEAHBESREER
financial assets 9,482 -
Loss on revaluation of R ESEHEER
convertible bond (note 20) (RMIEE20) (274) =
Others Eith 602 229
21,407 10,888
5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BADEA
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): KB (GEA) AR S IBZ S H MR AT
S ]

(a) Finance costs: (a) BIHHZE -
Interest on bank borrowings ARAFANBEEE
wholly repayable within five years RIRT TR FIE 15,024 19,645
Interest on convertible bond (note 20) ARRESALE (R 20) 776 =
Other interest expense HAbF BT 7,509 =
Less: Interest expense capitalised W BERNMERERFBYE
into properties under HAI S
development” (4,943) -
18,366 19,645
& The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.600% L BEERABIZE F5600%Z%8.515%
- 8.515% per annum. RILE R E AR ©
(b) Staff costs: (b) BT
Contributions to defined FE MR RET S
contributions retirement plan AR 3,768 3,713
Equity-settled share-based VARG AR 45 & LA R A7
payment expenses RERHR 1,363 973
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMEF 56,528 50,400

61,659 55,086
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5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 FHiAnzH ()

(c) Other items: () EftEE :
Amortisation of intangible assets BiHEEE 138 72
Auditors’ remuneration K EM BN & 2,557 2,350
Cost of inventories #(note 15(c)) FERA *(RMEE15(0) 430,286 439,487
Depreciation and amortisation of & E & EE T8 R g
fixed assets 31,795 33,066
Impairment losses — Trade and RIEEE - B 5 EIGIE
other receivables (note 16(b)) K HAtp el 50 (R KR 16(b)) 1,102 728
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) PERIEK (W) FH 908 (420)
Operating lease charges e ER 8,128 4,141
Net loss on sale of fixed assets HEBRTEEEREEFE 44 378
g Cost of inventories includes $49,005,000 (2013: $50,842,000) # FEXRABEZHEINA  K&EMH
relating to staff costs, operating lease charges, depreciation EER WEREHAIZBBEAR
and amortisation expenses, which amounts are also included 49,005,000 7T (2013 4F : 50,842,000
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in 70)  BAE@REIRE A _ESTEHTEE S(b) B
note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses. SHRTERB L RBENEEESERA -

6

Current tax — Hong Kong
Profits Tax
Provision for the year

Current tax — PRC income tax
Provision for the year

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 6 #SEEBRRANAME
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HREBERRANBENRRE
profit or loss represents:

ENHA%IE - BB FIEH
FREHE 4,851 3,666

BNSARIE - PEIFTEH

FNEE 35,354 43,966
EFERE
Ry = SR EE A R B (D

(708) (143)

39,497 47,489
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At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 is calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
The payments of dividends by the Group companies
incorporated in Hong Kong are not subject to
withholding tax.

On 16 March, 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the
Tenth National People’s Congress passed the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the PRC (“New Tax Law") which
became effective on 1 January 2008 and the PRC's
statutory Corporate Income Tax rate is 25%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to
advanced technology enterprises established in the
PRC, JSST is subject to PRC corporate income tax at a
preferential tax rate of 15%.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation
rules, dividends receivable by non-PRC-resident
corporate investors from PRC-resident enterprises are
subject to withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by
tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since
1 January 2008. Under the tax arrangement between
the Mainland of China and Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and the relevant regulations,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the
“beneficial owner” and holds a 25% equity interest
or more of a PRC enterprise is entitled to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5%. The withholding tax rate
applicable to the Group is 5%.

6

mEEBRANMES (&)

(a) HEBRXRAWBIERR (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

REASHENEBRELFHENR
AIRRO - ARBBERZERE
RGN EMMSH -

#H £2013F &2014F12A31H
IEFE - BEENGERNBELRER
TR R R AR 16.5% 518 - &
E BN EB ML A R TR
KRR B B EBMTEIE -

MR2007F3 8160 F+EE2H
ARREAREERARZESZ AR
PRI ZERMSETE((FEE]D - H
R2008F 1 A1 BAN » FBUAE
EMEBEAE25% ©

AR 38 A A E R B AR S B = 3 B AT
EREEER - ISSTEREER
R 15% MNP B ZETEF -

BB EREERMA - BRIE
20084 1 A 1 B #BHREL A o | JE TR
BBk ZBE R - BRIFEREE
ROEREERRFTFREAERLEDN
IR B ZBHZ 10% BUAnTEFIEL - R IEA
B A Hh ER S A BT TR & 2 R RO Bt
BB RBEER - FATREME
W[ ESHA A W3EH 25% A
FRENEEREETRBERTZE
EERBHRES% - EARASE
ERTEIREA5% °
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 6 #AESEBmXRANFIEH (E)
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BHEMZHEEERARETENS
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FhRF R

Profit before taxation TR A 190,601 175,820
Notional tax on profit before RAAR AR RN ERTE

taxation, calculated at the rates KB R A A HE E B I8

applicable to profits in

the jurisdictions concerned 33,747 42,621
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] 175 5 Sz #4755 18 57 22 2,657 2,865
PRC withholding tax FREITEHIRE 3,093 2,003

Actual tax expense ERHIERX 39,497 47,489
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7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 EEMe
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of RBEFHEBCRRNED) (F622F)WER 115
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 7815 WRBRIECARESFI) (F32F)F 161
622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong &5 ESBST

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

Salaries,

allowances Contributions

and other to retirement Share-based
Directors’ benefits benefits Discretionary payments

Name of directors fees in kind schemes bonuses Sub-Total (note)
e 2UK BINER URGAE

EZhe EtBUEAN aHEIfR Rt hat BT (E)

$'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000

THT THET THET THET THET THET

Executive directors HiTEE

Guo Yumin PIR - 553 - 128 681 68 749
Xia Yu BE - 503 - 128 631 68 699
Zeng Xiangyang el - 305 - - 305 68 373
He Lijun WyE - 379 89 - 468 - 468
Huang Bo b - 400 - - 400 68 468
Bau Siu Fung g - 1,000 - - 1,000 68 1,068

Independent non-executive BUAHEE

directors
Lo Wa Kei EEL 200 - - - 200 - 200
Fong Wo Ll 200 - - - 200 - 200
Fan Qing ) 200 - - - 200 - 200

Total At 600 3,140 89 256 4,085 340 4,425
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7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 7 ESEME(E)

Salaries,
allowances  Contributions

and other to retirement Share-based
Directors’ benefits benefits  Discretionary payments
Name of directors fees in kind schemes bonuses Sub-Total (note)
Fe 2R EARAER]
gz A , HE 35 BIBTEAL NGt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TATL BT THL TATL TAT
Executive directors HiTEE
Guo Yumin IBER - 554 15 - 569 48 617
Xia Yu ER = 404 - - 404 48 452
Zeng Xiangyang Ll = 805 = = 805 48 853
He Lijun e - 610 82 313 1,005 = 1,005
Huang Bo R - 602 - - 602 23 650
Bau Siu Fung &g - 1,002 15 - 1,017 48 1,065

Independent non-executive BUFHEE

directors
Lo Wa Kei BEL 200 - - - 200 - 200
Fong Wo LL] 200 - - - 200 = 200
Fan Qing B 200 - - - 200 - 200
Total CE 600 3977 112 313 5,002 240 524
Note: BT
These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors ZENFIERBARREBERESER TESOMEEE
under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options IRAE(EE - ZEREREMNBE TIRIRMFE 2(a)i) Pk
is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based REBBBAROG RERNROR S G BRT
payment transactions as set out in note 2(q)(ii) and, in accordance with that £ MBEZER  EREERRREBRBETEFER
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years LiEm TERNGBAH LM RErH S EELNA
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting. o
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms ZEEMENOFE (BEREHERENEER

and number of options granted, are disclosed in note 22. FREE ) MR 22 %8z -
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8  INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 ®mFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2013: AEARSHFMALTHELIZ(Q013F :48) 5
four) are directors, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The B2E . HIES R 7HE - 5T A T8 F
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals MERLT

are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments e R E R 379 624
Contributions to retirement RIRFEFIRTBI R
benefits schemes 113 11
492 635
Number of senior management SREIRE AR 1 1
The above individuals are within the following band: A EATHEFMNFATEE :

2014 2013
2014 5 20134

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AB N

Nil to $1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 #7T 1 1
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY 9 ARARERRRELZF
SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the RATERRRELGEBENEE—EETA
Company includes a profit of $7,504,000 (2013: loss of $70,000) RN BB B R 3% /925 ) 7,504,000 7 (2013 4 -
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the E548 70,000 L) °
Company.
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for the SRR B AN B AN AR i R Y SIBR
year:

Amount of consolidated profit/(loss) BIARR R IR

attributable to equity KA IR EER

shareholders dealt with & AR

in the Company’s

financial statements 7,504 (70)
Final dividends from subsidiaries REAMB AR E—BKE

attributable to the profits EmF  WRARFEZ

of the previous financial year, R AHRERR S

approved and paid during the year 33,253 41,500
Company’s profit for the year (note 24(a)) A2 RIANFE @A (M7 24(a)) 40,757 41,430
Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the B RENAR B EERROKREFESHIIN

Company are set out in note 24(b). B 5E 24(b) °
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Htb 2 H W=

(a) HfeZE Wz B A D IR
BT E

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of
other comprehensive income

2014 2013
2014% 20136
Tax Tax
Before-tax  (expense)/  Net-of-tax  Before-tax  (expense))  Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
BiA A
Rae® () /7@ BkeH fiaes ( I Bk
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TEx TER THR AL AT AT
Exchange differences on IMEREZEE
translation of:
~ finandial statements of i) 1,145 - 1,145 10,230 - 10,230
subsidiaries BER
Available-for-sale financial assets: A ESRERE
~ net movement in fair value reserve - ATERER
Vs (3,505) - (3,505) 3,505 - 3,505
Other comprehensive income Hiv2Eks (2,360) - (2,360) 13,735 = 13,735
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) E2EKZARIED r BFEE

including reclassification adjustments

Available-for-sale financial assets:

Changes in fair value recognised

AHHESMEE -
KREREROATEE

during the year 5,977 3,505
Reclassification adjustments B RARBAER

for amounts transferred to KB RE

profit or loss:

— gain on disposal - HE W (9,482) _
Net movement in the fair value £ H A 2 i a F #ERR

reserve during the year HEFENRTHEREEF

recognised in other 2

comprehensive income (3,505) 3,505
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 SRER
(a) Basic earnings per share () BREFRZRF
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year REBE204F EFENERERR A
ended 2014 is based on the consolidated profit attributable TIRBARGB R REGEGEE R
to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$92,507,000 92,507,0007% 7T (20134% : 77,934,000
(2013: HK$77,934,000) and weighted average number of BIL) RARARERE ZEITIRG M
416,391,346 shares (2013: 415,000,000 shares) in issue B T 15 21416,391,346 % (2013 £ :
during the year. 415,000,000 f&f%f7 )
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BRESFER

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on BREERNNAERSENARRIELR
the consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity 1 2 % B FE A 4R & 4 51 93,557,000 7 7T
shareholders of the Company of HK$93,557,000 (2013: (20134 : 77,934,000 Jt ) Bk JA 48 1
HK$77,934,000) divided by the weighted average number of BERAATBERARBEERBERESE
ordinary shares of 439,233,158 shares (2013: 417,155,000) (BI5E22) 321 TR (0 S AR (EBZ A ] A IR (F
after adjusting for the effects of deemed issue of shares % (MIsE20) 2 W EER AR EB N L ER
under the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (note 22) fn #E S 15 $439,233,158 % (2013 4 :
and the effect of deemed conversion of convertible bond (note 417,155,000 %) 515 -

20).

(i)  Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders () FLOFEZBEEZBREGER(E

of the Company (diluted) E)

Profit attributable to ordinary 7N/ A] & Bz IG R

equity shareholders i =Ryl

of the Company 92,507 77,934
After tax effect of effective FIR AR AR &S

interest on the liability BRI EE

component of iR R (RMFE20)

convertible bond (note 20) 776 -
After tax effect of change in ~ AJHREHFHTRAT

fair value of embedded PTEBD A TEEH)

derivative component of EENTETE (RHE20)

convertible bond (note 20) 274 -

Profit attributable to ordinary ~ ZN/A A] & Bz IG R
equity shareholders of FE R A (B58)
the Company (diluted) 93,557 77,934
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued)

(ii) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

11 SRER(E)
(b) BREHEEF ()
(i) BEROMETSH(EE)

(diluted)
2014 2013
2014 20134
Weighted average number of 38 A% H) HIHE 159 51
ordinary shares 416,391,346 415,000,000
Effect of deemed issue of BRAIERIBAR D BRI AER 2
shares under the Company's /TR HHF 2 (R KR 22)
share option scheme
(note 22) 1,732,041 2,155,000
Effect of deemed conversion R {EE IR A% (E5
of convertible bond K2 (RMIEE20)
(note 20) 21,109,771 -
Weighted average number of & 3BAXHY hIAEF 5 8 (45%)
ordinary shares (diluted) 439,233,158 417,155,000
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12 FIXED ASSETS 12 BEEE
Interests in
leasehold
[and held
Office for own
equipment Use under
Plantand  and other Motor ~ Construction operating
Buildings ~ machinery  fixed assets vehicles — in progress Sub-total lease
REREER
Mg
KR
$000
Thn
Cost: A
At 1 January 2013 R1BEIR1E 149,670 252,599 13,004 7,591 2,664 425,528 48,080 473,608
Exchange adjustments E AT 4,664 7,848 383 237 4 13,175 1,504 14679
Additions hE 1,295 1,035 1,283 1,29 5 4912 - 4912
Disposals e (216) (53) (358) (229 - (856) - (856)
Transfer from construction BERTREY
in progress 1,838 728 91 - (2,707) - - -
At 31 December 2013 R013E12A318 157,301 262,157 14,403 8,893 5 442,759 49,584 492,343
Accumulated depreciation ZoHAEREH:
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2013 RBE1AIA (21,186) (57,171) (7.431) (4453 = (90,241) (3638 (93,879)
xchange adjustments B A (658) (1,49) (224) (139 - (.170) (128) (28%)
Charge for the year ERNik (1418) (20,561) (2.59) (1,509) - (32,078) (988) (33,066)
Written back on disposals RHEREE 56 47 9 203 - 399 - 399
At 31 December 2013 R013E12A318 (29,206) (79,434) (10,156) (5,894) = (124,690) (4,754) (129,444)
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2013 R013E12A31H 128,095 182,723 424 2,99 5 318,069 44830 362,899




SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR B 5

R 2014912 31 B UABTTAEN)

At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

12 BIEEE (&)

Interests in
leasehold
land held
Office for own
equipment use under
Plantand  and other Motor  Construction operating
Buildings  machinery fixed assets vehicles inprogress  Sub-total lease
REgE
HAZ BERERR
REREM MEELH
BT HEREE  EeEE hE e
$1000 §'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
TR TEn TR TEn TEn
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 RAMEIAIE 157,301 262,157 14,403 8,893 5 442,759 49,584 492,383
Exchange adjustments AR (523) (887) (44) 1) - (1,475) (170) (1,645)
Acquisition of a subsidiary e N - - 1m - - 1 - 1
Additions AE 3,490 1,065 81 853 16,499 2,738 - 2,738
Reclassfication to assets held for sale ~ EFAEARHAREEE (87653)  (75903) (7.804) (2.240) (3295 (176895 (22883  (199,778)
Disposals 5 - (375) (206) - - (581) - (581)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%512 8318 72,615 186,057 1,357 7,485 13,209 286,723 26,531 313,254
Accumulated depreciation ZiTEREE:
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1518 (29,206) (79,434) (10,156) (5,894) - (1246%) (a,754)  (129,444)
Exchange adjustments ER3E 66 181 255 16 - 288 13 301
Acquisition of a subsidiary YENBAR - - (11) - - (1) = (1)
Charge for the year ERA (7,589) (19,860) 217) (1,180) - (30,800) (995) (31,795)
Redlassification to assets held for sale ~ EXAEARARFEAE 15,209 33,791 5736 1,882 - 56,618 2353 58,971
Written back on disposals R EREE - m 113 - - 445 - 445
At 31 December 2014 R2014E12A318 (21,520) (64,990) (6,464) (5,176) - (98,150) (3383)  (101,533)
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A318 51,095 121,067 893 2309 13,209 188,573 23,148 2,11
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12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 12 EEEE(E)
(a) The analysis of net book value of properties (a) MEREFESFWOT :
is as follows:

Medium-term leases in the PRC MBS 74,243 172,925
Representing: B :
Buildings BF 51,095 128,095
Interests in leasehold land RIFCERERFEES B

held for own use WA E AR

under operating lease 23,148 44,830

74,243 172,925

Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating BB EHERHIEE BRHEE Tt RERIEL
lease represent land located in the PRC. As at 31 December KRBT - B2014F12 4318 © L1
2014, the remaining period of the land use rights ranged ERAEMSRTERN T 44 E47 15 -

from 44 to 47 years.

(b) Buildings, plant and machinery and interests (b) BBITREIXFIETF - HMERE
in leasehold land held for own use under BEEREKEHERERANE
operating lease pledged for banking facilities EripRER
As at 31 December 2014, motor vehicles, buildings, plant and M2014F12A31H R @ % A A
machinery and interests in leasehold land held for own use 179,502,000 7t (2013 4 : 280,551,000
under operating lease with net book value of $179,502,000 JC) KAE T B kR KRR
(2013: $280,551,000) are pledged as security against bank ERERFEE BEE L AR I
loans of certain subsidiaries (see note 19). LAMEARE THEBARMIRITERAERR

(RFFEE19) °

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RMBATMNIKRE

Company
RN E]

Unlisted investment, at cost IEETHRE (AR 249,955 84,955
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 13 RMBATMNKRE (&)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which ~ TZ|E#A T EFLEREFEEE - EESABONE
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The A FIE1E « B BAIEREI « Fris A 2 RD5ER A LE
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. Bg o

Proportion of ownership interest

L], 4300
Date and Place of
place of operation Issued Group's
incorporation/ and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment business up capital interest  the Company  a subsidiary activities
RLAH EXR BETR ALEN
ARER Rt £33 HEER ERER AARERE AWEARKE
Ling Xian Fei Yu Import and BERFELOCRIN 10 September 2007/ The PRC HKD 100% - 100% Trading of
Fiport (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ERAA The PRC i 23,180,000 cigarette films
("LXFY") (YD R 2001%9A 108/ AT EEERES
FARFELO R BRAR (Mz2) hE

(Note 1) and (Note 2)

Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science TR ENRARAR 6 March 2002/ The PRC Usb 100% - 100% Printing of
Technology Co, Ltd. (T1ssCh) (1) & The PRC ® 2,176,400 (Note 4) cgarette films
("155C") (Rt3) 00243768/ 9 (Hizta) BRI

TEeBENARAR i

(Note 1) and (Note 3)

Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & THIERBERRE 20 December 2008/ The PRC Usb 51% - 51% Printing of
Printing Science Technology BRAR The PRC i 5,500,000 (garette packages
Co, Ltd. ("JS5T") (ssTh(BeEn) - 20085128208/ e BIEEEDR)

THERBRERBRERAT (P5E 3) e (B3 7) lE]

(Note 1), (Note 3) and
(Note 7)

Qingdao Ener Packaging EERERERRARAR  27lune 2007/ The PRC 1) 100% - 100%  Manufacturing
Technology Co,, Ltd. (IQD Ener]) The PRC ] 12,000,000 (Note 5) of cigarette
("D Ener") (ErORME2)  2001%6A278/ e (MzEs) and BOPP films

BEAERANRARAN i EERBOPPEE
(Note 1) and (Note 2) gkt

Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging IHEREERHARDE 11 January 2013/ The PRC RMB 70% - 70%  Manufacturing
Technology Co. Ltd. (TISKT 1) (BezE 1) & The PRC B 7,000,000 and trading of
("JSKT") (Bt£3) WREIANE/ ARE aluminium foil

TEHERAFRRARAT EF' BERNES

(Note 1) and (Note 3) Rk
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 13 RHEARNIRE (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
frRgRatLA
Date and Place of
place of operation Issued Group's

incorporation/ and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment business up capital interest  the Company  a subsidiary activities

RaAYE

RLAH EXR BRAR AEEW

AER Rt MY HREA ENEE mALNARE BNEARRR IEEE
New Advantage Real BHTES R ERE 24 )uly 2013/ The PRC UsD 100% - 100% Real estate
Estate Development Co., Ltd. AR (INARED)) The PRC i 20,000,000 development
('NARED") (i) 013578148/ o BHEER

BAFEREERYARAT h

(Note 1)

Hong Kong Sheen Tai ERIERRAERAA 10May2013/  HongKong 1) 100% - 100% Investment
Investment Limited. (“HKSTIL") (THKSTIL)) Hong Kong B 25,000,000 holding
BRIERRARRAA W13F5A8108/ e RERR
Sheen Tai (HK) Properties JER (B8 EFE 27 November 2013/~ Hong Kong HKD 100% - 100% Investment
Investment Limited. (“STPIL(HK)") BRA(STPIL(HK)) Hong Kong & 100 holding
JER (B ) BEREBRAT 013511 A8/ BT HARR
Sheen Tai Properties JERE£EEERAE  18November 2013 HongKong Usb 100% - 100% Investment
Investment Ltd. ("STPIL") ([STPL) Briish Virgin B 100 holding
[EREXRABRAR Ilands ("BVI") 3 REBR

0135115188/

EERaEE

([EBRaEE])
Sheen Tai International JERERREERAT 2May2013  HongKong Usb 100% 100% - Investment
Investment Ltd. ("STIL") (TSTIL) Kz o) British Virgin &% 100 holding
JEREB R EBRAT (Note 6) Islands (“BVI") eI REER

WI3E5F2R/

ABRAHE

([XBRAES])
Century Leader Asia Limited BEENERAT 2April 2007/ HongKong HKD 100% - 100% Investment
("CLAL") (TCLAL)) Hong Kong B 10,000 holding
FEENERAR W7E4R28/ 5% AT REBR
Sheen China Group JEE£ERRERAZ 27 November 2008/ Hong Kong Usp 100% 100% - Investment
Holdings Inc. ("SCGHI") (TSCGHI)) British Virgin 8 10 holding
EEERARERAR Islands (“BVI") eI RARR

2008118278/

ABRAHE

(EBR&ER )
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13 REEARNRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

it L350
Date and Place of
place of operation Issued Group's
incorporation/ and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment business YENE] interest  the Company  a subsidiary activities
RLAH EXR BEfR
Rt £33 HREEx HALIEE HANEAFEE
Sheen China Group Holdings BESEZRARAZ 5 September 2008/ HongKong HKD 100% - 100% Trading of
Limited ("SCGHL") ([SCGHLY) Hong Kong &% 1 cigarette films
[EEEEARERAA 0085958 /A% AT BIEERES
Sheen China (Hong Kang) JEE (B8 BRAT 20August 1997/ Hong Kong HKD 100% - 100% Trading of
Limited (“HKSC") (THKSC) Hong Kong &5 12,600,000 digarette films
% (B%) BRAR 19974682085 AT BERRES
Note 1: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The MiEE1 : RXAMEFLHERSE - ZEZERD

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

official names of these entities are in Chinese.
These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in PRC.
These entities are equity joint ventures in PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group owned 68.15%
equity interest of JSSC. On 28 August 2012, the Group purchased
the remaining 31.85% equity interest of JSSC from a third party.
Since then, JSSC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group owned
70% equity interest of QD Ener. On 13 March 2012, the Group
purchased the remaining 30% equity interest of QD Ener from
a third party. Since then, QD Ener became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreements dated 4 April 2014
and 16 May 2014, the Company purchased the entire issued
share capital of Sheen Tai International Investment Ltd, a company
wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholder and director, Mr
Guo Yumin. Upon completion of the acquisition which took place
on 30 June 2014, Sheen Tai International Investment Ltd. became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to the Equity Transfer agreement dated 15 January 2015,
SCGHL conditionally agreed to sell its interest in JSST. More details
were disclosed in note 28.

EH BT -
W2 ZEERATAINELE -
W3 REERATAAELE -

34 HE2011F12A3MBIUEEE - AEEH
B ISSCH)68.15% ik # - 17201248 A28
B ANEBERE=FWHEISSCET 31.85%
HIRRAE - B ATR @ ISSCRX AR EERN 2
EHIBAA] o

WS BE2011FE12B31BIEFE  AEEE
A QD Ener HJ70% A% #E o 7201243 A
138 - AEBEKSE=HUKEQD Ener T
30% KIARHE ° BILLATE © QD Enerfk AN
EHNE2ENBAR -

MisE6 : RIENR2014F4 B4BM201455 816 H
FIVMEBEE W ARRRBHRZERRR
REEDIRAL2EHENIERE R
BERARINEEHEBITIRA - R201445F
6 A30 AR IREER  IERERILE AR
ARIKBARRRNEEHBAR]

MEE7 : IRIEMR 20154 1 A 15 B 7] 37 B AR A8 3% 177
% EEEEERERA ARG KGERZED
EHAFIEHIERBEORIRHEBR QA
HIMERS o FFIBHEAMIFE 28 »
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 13 REBARINERE (&)
The following table lists out the information relating to JSST and TEREFIEISST R ISKT BN ER} - ZATI=
JSKT, the subsidiaries of the Group which have material non- NEBHAE AIFERBESOMB AT - T&
controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial information 2INFBERREREEAR AR EEET
presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company K SEATHYEREE o
elimination.
JSST JSKT
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014 2013 2014 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT FET FAT
NCI percentage RSN A DL 49% 49% 30% 30%
Current assets MENAE 189,431 192,073 28,181 21,395
Non-current assets FEMENEEE 141,243 148,185 9 15
Current liabilities Pk JN=Ni (146,104) (165,832) (12,506) (6,126)
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE (585) (639) = -
Net assets FEE 183,985 173,787 15,684 15,284
Carrying amount of NCI PR i s BR T (B 90,152 85,156 4,705 4,585
Revenue L ON 308,111 292,335 28,184 27,235
Profit for the year F A 117,916 101,303 2,730 2,527
Total comprehensive income ZEW =BT 117,692 105,461 2,680 2,930
Profit allocated to NCI ST IR A
bl 57,778 49,639 819 758
Dividend paid to NCI AT IR R AR S 53,077 27,548 687 =
Cash flows from K TRENEER
operating activities BHEm 158,180 46,901 11,620 (12,559)
Cash flows from HEEEEERN
investing activities WM (12,410) (1,882) 400 238
Cash flows from BB RENELER
financing activities e (106,290) (75,739) - 12,353
14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14 JHEELMEE

Group and Company
TEBERAEQT

Equity securities: MRAFE 5
— Listed in Hong Kong (note 25(e)(i)) — BB W (R 25)i)) _ 23,702
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14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14 A#tHESRMEE (&)

(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s and the Company’s listed R2013F12 A31 8 - NEE RARQRA A #
available-for-sale equity securities were not determined to be HE EMARANE F W ARG EE RIBE
impaired.
15 INVENTORIES 15 #E&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statements of () ZKEMBRABERANEFEEE
financial position comprise: &

Packaging materials manufacturing ~ E5R¥IFEIEESH

and trading R R
Raw materials R 57,586 66,680
Work in progress BIAK 6,547 9,689
Finished goods 28,808 26,209
92,941 102,578
Property development VIR
Land held for future FHERRERAEHE
development for sale bz 230,614 -
323,555 102,578
(b) The analysis of carrying value of land held (b) HEMEBBUMBEEN LU
for property development for sale is as REEEIMWOT :
follows:

Outside Hong Kong BRI
— 50 years or more (long leases) - 50F kA L (REFAE) 230,614 =
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2014412 A 31 B UAHE T RER)
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 15 #E (&)
(c) The analysis of the amount of inventories (0 BREAZHITTASHERNE
recognised as an expense and included in ESBoMMT :

profit or loss is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold B &F&HIREE 430,440 438,679
Write down of inventories FEHOR = 808
Reversal of write down of inventories 1 [E177 & H#U (154) =
430,286 439,487
16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EZEWHRERHtERKIE
Group Company
i ] A ONG|
2014
20145
$'000
THT
Trade and bills receivable B IRYGUE R EWER 161,992 241,024 = =
Less: Allowance from doubtful debts o REREES (1,830) (728) = =
note (16(b)) (RLHIEE16())
160,162 240,296 - -
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BEREREM
receivables - third parties EATE- £=5 26,221 16,486 290 289
Amount due from subsidiaries L/ 2 R R 0E - - 130,621 143,506
186,383 256,782 130,911 143,795
All of the other trade and other receivables (including amounts due Ffr B H A 5 FE W kI8 [ E A FE GRRIE (B HE FE
from subsidiaries), are expected to be recovered or recognised as Wb 8 A RIFRIE ) TR AR — AU S ERR A

expense within one year. sk o
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 16 EFREKWFEREMEKRIE ()

(@) Ageing analysis: (a) BRERDHT :
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RBEHKR - ESHEBARBKRER (T)
trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade AR S ERFOE R E AR FIAER ) &
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of REE A H R HIBR RER BB AR DT
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: NN
Group
AEH
2014 2013
2014 5§ 20134
Trade Bills Trade Bills
receivable receivable receivable receivable
25 =
PEW R IE EWERE FEMRIA P =&
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FHET TERT FHETT T
Less than 30 days iAE= 46,747 19,645 123,485 3,419
31 -90 days 31-90H 61,884 9,530 82,953 16,128
91 - 180 days 91 -180H 11,859 76 5,536 -
181 - 365 days 181 -365H 6,247 - 6,976 -
Over 365 days #BiE365H 4,174 - 1,799 =
130,911 29,251 220,749 19,547
Trade and bills receivable are due within 30 to 180 days from BEoRERIBEREREEBEZAME
the invoice date. Further details on the Group’s credit policy 30E180R A BREAEEEER
are set out in note 25(a). KA — B AN 25(@) °
(b) Impaired of trade debtors and bills receivable (b) EZEBAREBVREBRE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills ESEHARERRBENREEESHRA
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the EEIRRGCEE - BRIEAEERBUEHA]
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in BEMHIR(E - BRI HRERBENSEERE
which case the impairment loss is directly written off against HIHE SEH A REKEE o (R 2(G)

trade debtors and bills receivable. (see note 2(j)(i)) (i)
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 16 EZEWFEREMEWKRTRIE ()
(b) ESEBAREKREERE (&)

(b) Impaired of trade debtors and bills receivable

(continued)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

B EHARERERNRE DT (BR
ERHHARB T ERRE) T

Group
AEE

At 1 January M1H1H 728 =
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE 1,102 728
At 31 December ®12A318 1,830 728

As of 31 December 2014, an impairment loss of
HK$1,830,000 (2013: HK$728,000) was recognised and
provided for as a result from the assessment of the Group’s
trade receivables due from third parties of HK$1,830,000
(2013: HK$728,000) that individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired trade receivables mainly
relate to customers who are in financial difficulties and the
likelihood of recoverability is expected to be in doubt. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Trade receivables due from third parties that are past due
but not impaired relate to creditworthy customers who have
maintained a close working relationship with the Group and
have consistent payment records.

MN2014F12 4318 BFEMH —EHA
EEEWRE=HBEBEREREN
1,830,000/ 7T (20134 : 728,000 %
7 ) FRUBR R R FI A TR A R (B B 18
£]1,830,000/% 7T (20134F : 728,000
7C) o ERIEE AR ERNE 5 EBFIEE
EHEEFE B - RATKEIR) A8
MIFRERE - AEBREMZEESEE
FAEAR G -

ERHERRENEKRE=TTNEZEK
RS REAREE B FETNAFH
& UHEAHENFEHENEERFNE
E o
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Trade and bills receivable that are not
impaired:

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

16 EZBUGRIER EARNRIE (8)

(9]

RRERNEBERARRERRE

FE W B 5 50 B B R IR M BRI D AT (B
mERIK AR TR ARE) T

Group
AEE

Current BNER 113,243 211,908
Less than 1 month past due wHEI DR 18 A 22,720 10,245
1 to 3 months past due BE1 E3MEA 11,635 7,627
More than 3 months past due 60 B A58 3 (& 12,564 10,516
Amount past due BHEEE 46,919 28,388

160,162 240,296

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
the trade balance with a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balance are still considered fully recoverable.

Trade and other receivables pledged for
banking facilities:

As at 31 December 2014, nil trade receivables (2013:
$49,080,000) are pledged as security against bank loans of
certain subsidiaries. (See note 19)

(d)

A8 HA B AR R O B WK IR B4 B YD 4
REBNZHEFERM -

B8 BB RIRE R B IR B3 T HLANER
B RIFRHLENBURPNE S
HAM o RIFBELSR - EEERARZT
EHRBAFLRERE  RERERLE
EAZHAEHNER A28 E -

RBITREFEFNE Z B
TE R A EWRIR

R2014F12 A31H - EZ SR W KA
(20134 : 49,080,000 7T ) JhE 10 4
TFHEBRRBITERNERR - (RKIE
19)
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17 BEeRBEELEEEH
(a) RERHELZEEE VT :

Company
AN F]
2014
2014 5
HK$'000
FTHET

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Group
rEE
2013
20134
HK$'000
T4

2014
2014 £

2013
20134
HK$'000
T

HK$°000
FTi&x

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 117,049 61,179 26,217 131

M2013F X% 2014512 8318 F#HR
H B R ER 17 R F 88 3R € 9 51130,608,000
7 70 52.90,248,000 8 7T MR B E HE
& AS A BT HE IR INES HIFTIRR

As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, cash at bank and in hand
placed with banks in the PRC amounted to $30,608,000 and
$90,248,000 respectively. Remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC
government.

(b)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to
cash generated from operations

(b) BAIEFERELFEREHNYIR

Operating activities KeEER
Profit before taxation TR A 190,601 175,820
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of intangible assets T B B 5(c) 138 72
Depreciation and amortisation & E & ETE R
of fixed assets 5(c) 31,795 33,066
Finance costs BATE A 5(a) 18,366 19,645
Dividend income from investments % & HIALEUA 4(a) (1,549) _
Interest income FEUWA 4(a) (2,419) (1,123)
Gains on sale of available-for-sale HERHHES R
financial assets BEM 4(b) (9,482) =
Net loss on sale of fixed assets HEREEENEEFE 5(c) 44 378
Equity-settled share-based AR 45 5 LA D
payment expenses RERENRK 5(b) 1,363 973
Net foreign exchange gain BEE 3, W s F R 2,892 4,550
Operating profit before changes &EESHEATH
in working capital RERR 231,749 233,381
(Increase)/decrease in inventories F&E(Em),wmd (27,326) 4,774
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B S REWGRIE R EAM
other receivables FEMRERIBR A, (3 h0) 10,861 (31,773)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and SN FTAREAM
other payables FERTRRIE CRid) /15N (59,407) 18,296
Cash generated from operations KEMEEHES 155,877 224,678
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18 EZBAREREMENKIE

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
AEE LA
2014 2014
20145 20145
$'000 $'000
TET THEx
Trade and bills payable BIRNTBERENER 61,530 51,340 = =
Other payables and accruals HinENFIERESER
— related parties - @A 46,011 - 114,876 -
- others - Hft 110,157 36,213 788 709
Amount due to the Controlling R RREERE
Shareholder and director
~Mr Guo Yumin -BERKE 3,757 536 3,225 -
221,455 88,089 118,889 709

F B 55 P8 508 B LA SRR A
— R R IR -

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand.

RBEHR - EHERARBHNER(TS
FTAB BN TR R EMENRIAR) &
RERBHINREINTAOT ¢

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
creditors and bills payable (which are included in trade and other
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Group
A EE
2014 2013
2014 5 20134
Trade Bills Trade Bills
payable payable payable payable
=) =
ENRE ENERE FESTFRIR AR
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
FET THET BT FABT
Due within 1 month or on demand 116 A R 3 EA sk fE 25K 11,554 42,500 20,458 20,967
Due after 1 month but 1B A%E3EAR
within 3 months El): 6,329 - 7,301 -
Due after 3 months but 3EA%E6EAR
within 6 months EI|H8 397 - 681 =
Due more than 6 months 618 A& EIH 750 - 1,933 =
19,030 42,500 30,373 20,967
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19 BANK LOANS 19 RITER
At 31 December 2013 and 2014, the bank loans were repayable as MR2013F K 20146 12 A31 8  SRITEFER
follows: HAOOR -
Group Company
A5 ARH

Within 1 year or on demand 1ENHEER 211,273 271,091 - 41,500
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FRB2ER 220 213 - =
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FRBSER 658 870 - =
878 1,083 - -
212,151 272,174 - 41,500
Group Company
XEE L

Representing: B
Secured Pepiiei 198,998 246,734 - 41,500
Unsecured st 13,153 25,440 = =

212,151 272,174 = 41,500
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BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2013 and 2014, the banking facilities of the Group
totalling $496,388,000 and $468,832,251 respectively were utilised
to the extent of $272,174,000 and $212,151,000 respectively.
Certain bank loans were secured by assets of the Group as set out
below:

19

RITER (&)

MN20134 K% 2014%12 8318 - A&EE A&
2 Bl 4 496,388,000 JT & 468,832,251 7% T
R IR 1T L & B 9 Bl #) A 272,174,000 7T &
212,151,000/87T - HANEBMEERROE T
IBITERHFHIINAT -

Restricted cash ZRHE S 18,950 49,704
Fixed assets BEEE 179,502 280,551
Trade receivable B 5l FE = 49,080

198,452 379,335

At 31 December 2013, the banking facility of the Company was
guaranteed by Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science
Technology Co., Ltd. (“JSST").

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the drawn
down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out
in note 25(b). As at 31 December 2014, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2013: $nil).

CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 30 June 2014, the Company issued convertible bond in
the principal amount of HK$165,000,000 to the Controlling
Shareholder and director, Mr Guo Yumin. The maturity date of
the convertible bond is on the third anniversary of the date of
issuance (i.e. 30 June 2017). The convertible bond bears interest at
3% per annum. No security or guarantee is granted in respect of
the convertible bond. The convertible bond can be converted into
99,517,490 shares at the initial conversion price HK$1.658 (subject
to adjustment pursuant to the terms of the convertible bond).

20

R2013% 12 A31 BARARIAEITEE BT
EZE B 2 ENRIRHT AR A ) ([JSST | ) RHEIER -

REBOMERITHERGTEKNBRAAERE
TEEAGBHERNRE  HEFTHESHEEE
REEBLZHEAT R A& o WASKEZERTH @ AT
REMBEBZEREER AEETHERE
ERBTZELHL BHASEERRBES
[BL B2 Y3 — P EFIB B AR BT 3E 25(b) © A 2014 4F
12A318  AEEHEEREBRENNHBES
AR5 (2013F : &) »

AR R E 25

7K2014%F6 A308 @ NARIAIERRRFES
20 F R 58 4 34778 €58 165,000,000 7% 7T 49 A
BIRES - JRBREFERETAE-BAFE
H(B12017%F 6 A308) 8/ - WIZFFIE3%
AT B o ARA B ph AR AR B 55 5 (Al IR 4R
SRR o AR E S AT IR ) S E (B 1.658 8
T (ATARIR AT AR B RN T AR ) i A
99,517,490 RXA% 1) -
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20 CONVERTIBLE BOND (CONTINUED)

The Company may at any time before the maturity date of the
convertible bond, by serving at least seven days prior written
notice on the holder of the convertible bond with the total amount
proposed to be redeemed from such holder specified therein,
redeem the convertible bond (in whole or in part) at 100% to
the principal amount (together with the accrued interests) of the
part of the convertible bond to be redeemed. Any amount of the
convertible bond which is redeemed by the Company will forthwith
be cancelled.

At 31 December 2014, the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bond is HK$70,000,000.

The convertible bond recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group are analysed as follows:

Initial fair value of convertible bond 7K 2014% 6 A 30 BT

20

AR E S (F)

AR BER A AR A Z 2 B AT - MES
RAAZEZHTORERNE@AXN - &H
HARBEDMARE - R TEE SRR
BHFEHINASRCERRFME)  BEEE2H
BB ES (2HRET ) - BARRED
W ERPHEBE S SR AR S -

R2014F 12 A31H » AIRRESHAREER
4 %8/%70,000,000 77T ©

EAEBGAPBRDRERN A RRESD
M

Host liability Derivative
Component

FEEE

component Total
PTETAR
15
$'000
THERT

)
$'000
TR

#ct
$'000
FTET

issued on 30 June 2014 AR ES A A E 161,189 3,811 165,000
Accumulated interest expenses up to ~ ELE 2014412 A31H
31 December 2014 (note 5(a)) ZEHFLE 2 (5 5()) 776 _ 776
Change in fair value of derivative PTETEBHHATE
component (note 4(b)) &) (KizE 4(b)) = 274 274
Early redemption in July 2014 R2014F7 AR R ER (92,806) (2,194) (95,000)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R 20144 12 A 31 BH0%SER 69,159 1,891 71,050
Less: Interest payable due within 1year & @ 1FRE|EIHY (2,830) = (2,830)
Derivative component ERFIEBITETARS = (1,891) (1,891)
Non-current portion of convertible 2014512 A31H
bonds at 31 December 2014 IR B FERNER AL 5 66,329 - 66,329
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20 CONVERTIBLE BOND (CONTINUED) 20 AHgRES (F)

(i)  InJuly 2014, the Company early redeemed part of the ()  M2014F78 ARRIRRBRA|KE
convertible bond with an aggregate principal amount of FHER RAERE P A @EREES
HK$95 million (together with the accrued interests) in 95,000,000 7T (R £ 5 7 &) & —
accordance with its terms. Such early redemption was financed D o KRABEBI)BAE=ZAKELTRY
by 3 parts: 1) loans amounted to RMB65 million (equivalent BRAR(THATC)) FTiR it BB A R
to approximately HK$82 million) from a third party, Huai An 65,000,000 7T ( £ 48 & 7% 82,000,000 &
Tian Cai Co., Ltd. (“Huai An Tian Cai”); 2) cash payment of JC) M E R 2) A 81 498,000,0007 T
approximately HK$8 million; and 3) amount due to Mr Guo RIIRESRIE  AR3)ENBEREELD
Yumin of approximately HK$5 million. 5,000,000 L& £ =858 - RAIELD

AT RARES
Key terms of the loans from Huai An Tian Cai are as below: B HATC IR B+ ZE R T

Principal Drawdown Maturity Interest rate

Name of borrowers balance date date per annum
(EEONGIEE RE LR #Ex B FHR TR
RMB’000
ARETFT

Ling Xian Fei Yu Import

and Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* 25,000 28/07/2014 27/07/2015 6%
FBARFELACRY) BRAF
Qingdao Ener Packaging

Technology Co., Ltd. * 40,000 17/07/2014 16/07/2015 6%
FERHBENMRBRAR*

@ Subsidiaries of the Company *RARIMTE AR
No security or guarantee is granted in respect of the above AN 37 |8 = G i R A R
loans.

(i) Interest expense on the convertible bond is calculated using (i) AITEARRESEMFE S H IR E R F =AU
the effective interest method by applying the effective interest BERFNEA415%TEEEHD °
rate of 4.15% per annum to the liability component.

(i) No convertible bond was converted as at 31 December 2014. (i) #FZ2014F12831H WEAJBEKE

FIREBIR B
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the relevant
local authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the Scheme at the rate of 10% - 20% of the
eligible employees’ salaries for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2014.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

For those forfeited contributions under the Scheme and MPF
scheme the amounts could not be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the sole shareholder passed
on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “share option
scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide grantees with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the Company. The
purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain the best
available personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees
(full-time), directors and advisers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

21

22

EERKER
SEMKRIKETE

BEFBEAEBLESEERETE  PEMNBA
7] £ B i A A i 5 M R AR A A0 BT M TR AR
BAETEI(TEED - Bt REZE2013F K
2014F 12 A3V HIEFE - BB AR AR &
EHAER A EREEFH £ 10%-20% HIHEFK o

REBBIEESEHERABE ST BEDIBSZ
EREBREGARBTHEES2EBHIED
BerEl([aEST8l]) - wEestElA—1E
HBYZAABTENATEHIURIRETE - BIE
MmEeHE - BEREREESEAREIED
HERIESMRBWAS% R - AT AEE
U A 30,0007T (2014 5% 6 A Ai125,0007T ) A& +
R o MEFEIMERANESES -

AEETAERAEHEFHIERARETERNE
BRI TR DR B HFOKFE -

B B RSN - AERE B E A EE
AR EHERNREL

B
o

URAEEUARBR/RERNT S

RIEME— YRR 20124 6 A 22 BiRBREER
BER - BAARABERIEARET S ([ ERREsT
B ) B RIRA - AERARERESES KR
NAK BB o BRERT 85 EWR S| i
REMNITAAE  MASEERE (ZR) 3
N EARS IR (LR SMEB) A S (R AN B 2SR
Ij] °

SHBERETHEARNRBEARR —RE
B - WA 2BAEE -
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

(%)

Options granted to

22 URAGEUROG/BERNIRS

(a) BHEMERRIEEDT :

BFUT AL BRI

Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees
& A SR A A = ==l
22 June 2012 14 July 2013 13 July 2018 200,000 800,000 1,000,000
201246 A22H 20137 A14H 201847 H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2014 13 July 2018 300,000 1,200,000 1,500,000
20126 A22H 20147 A 14 H 201847 H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2015 13 July 2018 400,000 1,600,000 2,000,000
201296 A22H 201547 4141 201847 A 13 H
22 June 2012 14 July 2016 13 July 2018 500,000 2,000,000 2,500,000
20126 A22H 20167 A 148 201847 A 13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2017 13 July 2018 600,000 2,400,000 3,000,000
201246 A22H 20177 A 148 201847 H13H

2,000,000 8,000,000 10,000,000

(b) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:

wmh

(b) BRENHE RNEFGTEE

2014 2013
2014 F 20134
No. of No. of
Exercise price options options
TEE  ERERE BREHE
‘000 ‘000
T T4

Outstanding at the beginning ~ FHIEIARTTHEA
of the year HK$0.6029 /87T 10,000 10,000
Exercised during the year FABITHE (2,336) =

Outstanding at the end FEREAITHE

of the year HK$0.6029 87T 7,664 10,000
Exercisable at the end of the year SFRAI{TfE HK$0.6029/87T 164 1,000
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise

(c)

prices of share options are as follows:
(continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was $1.67. There
was no share option exercised in 2013 as the vesting period
was not lapsed.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had an
exercise price of HK$0.6029 (2013: HK$0.6029) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.27 years
(2013: 2.08 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return for the share
options is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimated fair value of share options is
measured based on binomial lattice model:

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value per share at et E BB ERR
measurement date mRFE

Share price BB

Exercise price per option BHERENITRE

Expected volatility (expressed TEER R (LAEA =B
as weighted average volatility BhpE g = A AN S
used in the binomial lattice model)  KIEFRR)

Option life i R HAR

Expected dividends TEEARR B

Risk-free interest rate [ 1 2

The expected volatility is based on past few years historical
price volatility of similar listed companies. Expected dividends
are based on management’s best estimation. The risk-free
rate is referenced to the yields of Hong Kong Exchange Fund
Bills/Notes issued by the Hong Kong Government with the
corresponding time to maturity of the option.

22 URAGEUROG/BERNIRS

(&)

(b) BRENEE RMNEFGTEE
mE ()

FARCITRBRENITE B BT
BRER1.677T - ARNEREDHARK
AR D 2013 FFHETTIE o

2014512 A31 8B & AR /T{E B RER
1718 18 /£0.6029 % 7T (20134 : 0.6029
EIL) BRI AR A 1.27F
(20134 : 2.084) »

() BRENAFERRRE:
IS IRIS AR B BR B ) 2 BRI A
BN RTEE - RIEBREO A TE
fEEHE - A A 8 -

BN A F1E R R
2014 2013

2014 5 20134

HK$0.7786 87t  HK$0.7786 /87T
HK$1.73 T HK$1.73 77T
HK$0.6029&7T  HK$0.6029/57T

46.8592% 46.8592%
5 years & 5 years &
2.4179% 2.4179%
0.5809% 0.5809%

BHURE D ERBU LT ARNBERFOE
SLERKE - RHARSDERNERENRER
it o EER A KT SBEBRTAAEITEBR
REAHEINRENTEINEESES R
BEeEx -
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 22 LUUIBRAZELURMMAEEENRRS

(CONTINUED) (%&)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions: () BRENAFERRBR: (8)
(continued)
Except for the conditions mentioned above, there were no R bl o - BT ERRE AR M =T 21 AERE /Y
other market conditions and service conditions associated HAb TR R AR &M o

with the share option scheme.

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 23 #ZHREHEiRRRANFFEH
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) FZEMBEMN KA EHHIE
statement of financial position represents: 1

As of 1 January W1A1HE 24,195 19,676
Provision for Hong Kong Profits FARBBAETRE

Tax for the year 4,851 3,666
Provision for PRC income tax FARPEFSHEE

for the year 35,354 43,966
Income taxes paid EASFTEH (61,197) (43,711)
Reclassified as asset held for sale BN BRAREREEE (65) =
Exchange difference PEHZERR (156) 598

As of 31 December M®12A31H 2,982 24,195
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 23 #ZHGEaBBARRAMNFFEH (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEHEBEERES
()  The components of deferred tax assets/liabilities ()  REREBMRARNERAELER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial HEE,/(BE)WERSED RERX
position and the movements during the years are as BEHIOT ¢
follows:

Provision

for inventories Undistributed Fair value

Unrealised  Fixed assets  Pre operating ~ Government Acrued  and trade profitof adjustment of

profit  depreciation expenses grant expenses  receivables TaxLoss subsidiaries assets
FEA
BAEK HRARN
AREN  BEEERE  SEAMR i 5 BHRNERE REFR  AONAE EENTERR
$000 $000 $000 i i $000 §000 §000 §000

TATL TAL Thr AL AL 7L T Thr T

At 1 January 2014 RNUEIA1A 2593 60 194 159 844 39 - 4,176) (127) 61)
Exchange adjustments B ST - - @ ] 5 = 5 = = 7
(Charged)credited to proftorloss F\ERZR (1188 /A (197) (4 (19) ] 1577 30 1,04 (1713) 74 708
Acquiston of a subsidiary KERER - - - - - - - - (4828) (4828)
Deferedincome taxassels ~~ ENABARE
reclssfed as held for sale FEMETHELE - 36) - (87) - - - - - (13)
At 31 December 2014 R0UENANE 23% = = = 2426 622 1,029 (5,889) (4881) (4297)
At1January 2013 R1BEIATA 1,558 58 37 259 - 5 - 2.07m) (201) 45
Eichange adjustments EREg - 2 10 1 12 6 - - - 3
Chargedi(credited)to proftorloss. RERFRIR/ (1A) 103 - (259) (107) 8 381 - (2,105) 74 (143)
At 31 December 2013 ROBENANE 2593 60 194 159 844 39 - 4176) (127) 61)
o These amounts include the provision of withholding & ZE & EEEN2013 k2014
tax on profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to B R BT B A R 6 s I 7B
HK$4,176,000 and HK$4,446,000 for the year 2013 B 5 5l 1E 4,176,000 7T
and 2014 respectively, and the reversal of deferred tax 4,446,000 8 TR B - AR
liabilities on withholding tax in respect of dividends » E E2013F k201446124
paid amounting to HK$2,072,000 and HK$2,733,000 BTHIEFE/ME AR ESTEMR
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, 2 Bl 4E 892,072,000 7T &
respectively. 2,733,000 TTHRIE R A B &

Bm -
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 23 #ZHGEaBBARRAMNFFEH (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEHEBEERES
(continued) (&)
(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of (i)  EREMBARARAOER

financial position:

Net deferred tax assets N NN RS O

recognised in the ERRELEFHIEE

consolidated statement B

of financial position 6,473 4,242
Net deferred tax liabilities e B IRS 2 He

recognised in the RAVELERIEE &

consolidated statement HER

of financial position (10,770) (4,303)

(4,297) 61)
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2014412 A31 B (CABTRE)
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 B - REREE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EHZANTOHNER

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBGRE S AR E D B Y & H
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity IRERNH RN G EERE TR - AR
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in AR F V) N G R 2R Y B B 48 ik 2B 0 By 2
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual BT ¢

components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:

Share Share Capital  Fair value Retained

capital premium reserve reserve profits

& BHEE  BARE  ATERE  REEA

§/000 §1000 §000 §000 §000

Thn 7 AT Tin ThIL
Binceat 1 Jnuay 2013 HI03%1 A 180EH Y8 B 8% - ) 6%
Total comprehensive income for the year EREENEEE - - = 3505 41430 44935
Dividend to shareholders RzRE (o) - - - - (41,500) (41,500

Balance at 31 December 2013 R013E12A318R

and 1 January 2014 2014%1 B 1 BA&S 4150 123,69 81,955 3,505 (293) 210374
Total comprehensive income for the year EnzEkaEE - - - (3,505 40,757 37,252
Dividend to shareholders REhe (b) - - - - (33253) (33253)
Shares issued under share aption scheme REERE ZRNRA (ol 3 3,204 (1819) = = 1408
Equity-setled share-based transactions NEREEHRNEERNRS (d)i) - - 1363 - = 1363

Balance at 31 December 2014 R014E12A318K 4173 126900 81,499 = 451 217,144
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends

(i)

Dividends payable and proposed to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year:

24 BX - RERKRE (H)

(b) BRE
(i)

Final dividend proposed after  fE¥& HAFR 12 2R R AR &

the end of the reporting BT BARAR (7 0.08 T
period of HK$0.08 (20134 : 0.0877T)

(2013: HK$0.08)
per ordinary share

BEIRN TARRERRERNFE
FEAERLE -

40,027 33,200

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 of HK$0.08 per share amounting to a total
dividend of HK$33,253,000 was approved and paid
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012 of HK$0.1 per share amounting to a total
dividend of HK$41,500,000 was approved and paid
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

(ii)

RS R EF RN O RERS

ARBAREHETNRE T FHER A
AIFEREIERE

MR2014F12 A31 8 » AAFHLE
NREE T 5EBMR 2013412 A318
KM B A 87T 33,253,000 7T
A4 7C0.08 7T °

R2013F12 A31 8 » AR FHLE
NREE T SEBMR 2012912 A318
R B A EHE7T 41,500,000 7T
&L 0.1 7T ©
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 24 ¥4 - FERKRE (&)

(c) Share capital () B=
Authorised and issued share capital JETE M EEITIRAR
2014 2013
2014 20134
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BHEE o] R EE -
(‘000) $'000 ("000) $'000
(FAR) FET (F8%) FAT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of SHEE0.01 8 TH
HK$0.01 each TR 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000

Ordinary shares, issued EETRHATNEER
and fully paid:

At 1 January ®K1A1H 415,000 4,150 415,000 4,150
Shares issued under RIRAE AR E ST 8181 THY
share option scheme &) (i) 2,336 23 = =

At 31 December ®12A31H 417,336 4,173 415,000 4,150

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends LERIEE A REERTRERHRKRE

as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per WHERRARAE EZEER—EME

share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank ZE - FTBEEBRIBARARNFEIBEE

equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. ZHRFHAL -

Notes: FisE

(i) On 24 January and 18 July 2014, options under the share (i) M2014F 1248 R7R188 & &
option scheme were exercised for 2,336,250 ordinary shares ARIRERETETHEERE  RE
of the Company at a consideration of HK$1,408,525 in total, 2,336,250 RA R AL @R - BEXA
of which HK$23,363 were credited to share capital and the 1,408,525 7T ° ARIELARR (D AEE S
balance of HK$1,385,162 was credited to the share premium RS ETEUR @ 2ERFB 23,3635
account and HK$1,819,067 has been transferred from the sE AR - H£41,385,162 78 LT A MK
capital reserve to share premium account in accordance with D EER 1,819,067 BILE M E X

the accounting policy adopted by share-based payment. RBEBARGRER o



SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERR M oE

2014412 A 31 B ABTTABAL)
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

General reserve fund

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate
10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year/
period losses) to the statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of each relevant
PRC subsidiary. The transfer to the statutory reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of
the subsidiary.

24 BX - EREE (R
(d) RHENEERAR
i) BORE

P03 (B #8 A A A Y A ) T R L 2
TI78R mIBLD T U ER PR S 50 R 2 A
HERE o

RERSHESRFE  ARAMNR
s ERFNERAIHESIERTAR
AR - MESERERE RS A
% ARRIARMEN—REKE
R E| B ROETS o

(i) SEERE
—RiFEED

RIBERN P BIER - AEBEHFT
B B B R AR R R B iR
Fl(feHEeH E—BFEEHRNE
BIMI0%EREXERFHE BEE
ZERBEESAETENE QR
FHMEARE50% o BARD IR R
TRARRIEEEEERMME &
E RS AR RS E
REA - AR EHTE 2 R 8 R5HE
BB MEERER -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(e)

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve presents the fair
value of the share options granted to employees of
the Group in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted by share-based payments in note 2(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
information of operations with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
notes 2(e).

Capital management

The Group’'s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholders returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

WREBEEARAT
—T-mEsrR

24 BX - RERKRE (&)
(d) REHNHEERAZR(E)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(e)

BARR 47 5 B HO SR A (8

AR A7) 7 ZE e 0 SR 8 T AR Y
5 2(0)0) AR D A E R Rt B
HIRSE IS T AR R B A
AT -

R

BE R R E B R E B T SN )
BEEBIENEBNMEERTE
EHFTAINEZRE

DRABERE

DA EER R REREE PR
BRI S R 2B F
A TEL I ARBH AN
SHEURRTA -

BEXEE

AEBEEEANEEBBETIARF
EAKERECENEES 28
37 38 R R B /K~ A E i MR TS TE
BRAGEKAERRE  EER
P SR 20 [ ¥R 3 {5 L At ) 25 AR R

& e

AREBEGRY FHRRALERRLE
AL - ERREHEER S EEK
iR E S R E 3R R E A
AR SR B 25 S ARFE 2 R BR (S
T YRESERANEREEE
AZRREIELFE -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the
equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
that there was adequate working capital to service
its debt obligations. The Group’s gearing ratio, being
the Group’s net debt over its shareholder’s equity as
at 31 December 2013 and 2014 was 42% and 62%
respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
subject to externally imposed capital requirements in
the current and prior years.

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arise in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade and bills receivable are due within 30 to 180
days from the date of invoice. Debtors with balances that
are more than 1 year from the date of invoice are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

At 31 December 2014, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 31.0% (2013: 56.8%) of the total trade
debtors were due from the Group’s largest customer and
65.7% (2013: 75.2%) of the total trade debtors were due
from the Group’s five largest customers.

24 BX - RERKRE (&)
(d) REHNHEERAZR(E)

25

() EXEE(H)

AEELREBEBHRNEILER -
RNEERREE T ARIFRARER
WIS BREZTKEELSEN
HEBEME - ZAEER2013F K
2014F 12 A3 AMEERAMGLIL X
(BN £2 B H)F B 75 bk LA L AR SR 4
=) DRNE42% % 62% °

RAFERBEFE - AAFHEE
EIHE R R INBIEINEE
RERFTARMR

BHEEREEREHMTRANQFE
FAEEREHEHBRREELEE  ADE
& MEREBER - AEBAEHNZER
S RARBANLERZSRARNSBRRE R

BUR R ABFIE N T o
(a) EERB

AEEEERRIEREE SRR
Hi W IR - REBESH A ZRKRT
—EEREENTFPETEENE - tF
FHEEER P B AR HE AL EIA N B A
MEREES - Y EEBAREFURER
REMERBERENBEER - EHRK
FANEREEEHZ AR08 E
180 HAEIH - RERTEME—HER
Al EBARBEMA B ER AR
REE—FHREREER - —RME - &
SETE2REPRREERR

M2014512 8318 " AEEERES
AEFRRIAL BRI A%ER31.0%
(20134 : 56.8%) * MA % B E W H
AREPFP R FIAR YR B TR 65.7%
(20134F : 75.2%) * MAKEX —E2
EREERRESF -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statements of
financial position.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 16.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
management and directors when the borrowing exceeds
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative and derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
and the Company can be required to pay:

25

(a)

(b)

WREBEEARAT
—T-mEsrR

?%@ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬂIEWQ$E
|

FERR (&)

RREERRESRESREENMHMRR
RAWBRHEE

AEEWEEHSAEEAZEERRD
EREbER

BREAREEMESEE 5 RUKIR R EM
UFRMELHNEERRNE—SEE
WERENHIE 16

REBE S @R

AEERNERNEEBRATEEAFNRE
R BREURSRHBETERRERE
BEFARNBERNREF R - EHEES
HBBRERESE  AAEEEERES
O - REENBREEHEREREDE
EFERERBETERERE - FBIBERE
HRARREFREIETIESRMBRN
MFERAGHE SRR AR A 8 R R

TRETASERARABFTERITES
BEERREHRNHBTROIHEBER -
ZEBBETDERGHABRASRE (B
EERAAMN XL (HETE) BERAR
HERMERGFENN BN RAKE R
ARRWELNHHHF B



SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR B 5

2014412 A 31 B UAHE T RER)
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERESRMIAMNAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBESEME ()
Group rEE

As at 31 December 2014
®2014E12A318
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
AHRRRRERE
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying 1 year or within less than
amount Total on demand 2 years 5years
15RE BB1E BR2%
] At FEEX 828R B5FR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TAR TAR TAR TET AR

Trade and other payables B HRENTUA R R 204,347 206,702 206,702 - -
Convertible bond MHRES 69,159 75,250 2,100 2,100 71,050
Bank loans RITER 212,151 217,847 216,969 220 658

485,657 499,799 4251 2,320 71,708

As at 31 December 2013
R2013E12 318
Contractual undiscounted cash flow

Morethan ~ More than
Within Tyearbut 2 years but

Carrying 1 year or within less than

amount Total  on demand 2 years 5 years

BB1E BRE

I At B25R B5%R

$'000 $:000 $'000 $'000

AT TATL I TATL TATL

Trade and other payables B S REUE RE MR FIE 64,620 64,620 64,620 = =
Bank loans RITER 272,174 278,865 271,762 217 886

336,794 343,485 342,382 217 886
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERESRMIAMNAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBESEME ()
Company A

As at 31 December 2014
®2014E12A318
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
AHRRRRERE
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but

Carrying 1 year or within less than
amount Total on demand 2 years 5years
15RE BB1F BR2%

fREfE At EEX B2%R B5%FR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TiEn TiEx TR TiEn TiEn

Trade and other payables B HRENTUA R R 114,876 114,876 114,876 - -
Convertible bond AR ES 69,159 75,250 2,100 2,100 71,050
184,035 190,126 116,976 2,100 71,050

As at 31 December 2013
R2013F12 A31H
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BRI
More than More than
Within Tyearbut 2 years but

Carrying 1 year or within less than

amount Total  on demand 2 years 5 years

1ERZ BiRF B E

REfE a3 B24ERA B5%R

$'000 f 1 $'000 $'000

BT BT TATL T

Trade and other payables B AN EREENE 109 109 109 - -
Bank loans BITER 41,500 41,772 4,772 = =

41,609 41,881 41,881 = =
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERESRMIAMNAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)

(c) Interest rate risk (0 FIZ=mAps
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans AREENNERRETERZEETERR
and cash at bank issued at variable rates that expose the BFRESL  BERFBESAEEREATIRS
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group does not MENERRE o REEWEERSEITE
use financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate T AR - AEBEAREEEE ]
risk. The Group defines “net borrowings” as being interest- ArTESRBERTEEREE - AEE
bearing financial liabilities less interest-bearing financial &I EBEE M R AN T () -

assets. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile i) F=@ES
The following table details the interest rate profile of TESMAEERAATNESS
the Group’s and the Company’s interest-generating MEERI ASREEBERBELE
financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities EF=ES

at the end of reporting period:

Group AEE

2014 2013
2014 20134
Effective Effective interest

interest rate
ERH=

%

Bift

Net fixed rate borrowings: ~ FEEEK :

Bank loans RITER 6.76 (29,652) 6.34 (115,558)
Convertible bond AR ES 3.00 (69,159) = =
Other payables L fERTRIR 6.79 (127,201) - -

(226,012) (115,558)

Net variable rate borrowings: FF2fEK :

Bank loans RITER 2.25-7.20 (182,499) 131-7.20 (156,616)

Less: Cash at banks B IRITER 0.01-0.36 116,865 0.01-0.36 60,549

Restricted cash ZRHES 0.36 18,950 0.36 49,704

,,,,, (46.684)  46363)

Total net borrowings SFETRAERR (272,696) (161,921)
Net fixed rate borrowing FIE B MERIEFE
as a percentage of total net AT B DL

borrowings 82.9% 71.4%
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERESRMIAMNAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) () FI=m=Bsx (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (continued) (i) F=RAE(E)
Company PN

2014 2013
2014F 201345
Effective Effective interest

interest rate rate
ERHE BIRH =

% %

Bift Bt

Net fixed rate borrowing: FEEMER

Convertible bond AR ES 3.00 (69,159) = =

Net variable rate borrowings: FFE A

Bank loans IRITEN = = 131 (41,500)
Less; Cash at banks s RITIFER 0.01 26,217 0.01 131
,,,,,, 26,217 41369
Total net borrowings e AR (42,942) (41,369)
Net fixed rate borrowing FIE BB RIEF
as a percentage of total net BRAAENBE S

borrowings 161.05% =
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general
decrease/increase of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increase/decrease the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately $389,000 (2013:
$522,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after tax
that would arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to floating rate instruments
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
at that date. The analysis does not take into account
exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising from
fixed rate instruments as the Group does not hold any
fixed rate instruments which are measured at fair value.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases made by the PRC subsidiaries which give rise
to receivables, payables, cash balances and bank loans that
are denominated in United States dollars (“USD"). Presently,
the Group has no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure.

25 BREREENRESMTIENDAFEE

(%)

(9]

(d)

M=Ek (&)
(i) SREIN

2014512 A318 » &t & X
BT, FF100EER - &
FrEEMEERBTENERT -
NG BB 1805 F) R AR B8 i FI 5 45
hn,EA#9389,000 7T (2013 4F
522,0007%87T) °

B RRE DT B AR E R
RIS A BN E) - B RR A
RZASREBMASZ RS RER
KEBITEREFEMETE - i
RAKEY EFHF AR A FEFTED
ERELSTE  Aib ol &L =
ERTRAEANRENEREE
UL IB D IR 2013 FH) Rl — E £ #
(i

B ER

REBFTARK B E e X 2ok 8 BT
BARMHE MRE - BREERREE
HEASRIT(T3RT)) P ER B KRR - B
NRE - MEGERMIBITER  B/E - K
S B EA BSNE R R EPBUR ©
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKD, translated using the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial information of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

25 BREREENRESMTIENDAFEE

(%)
(d) EWmkE(H)
PR AR

TRAJIAEBRNRERRAARZNERE
R - ZEEERER T RZ AR BN
BEEW AN EREHENDEREENA
EMEL - LEHRENME - ERBEIAE
TEHR » WIATRE MR BN E R -
BEINIEBHBERNRAEEEREN
PREARZRELEAEER o

Exposure to USD
(expressed in
Hong Kong dollars)
ETE (B TREN)

Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEER 1 -
Net exposure arising from EHEREENEE

recognised assets FrEE £ By R B

and liabilities 1 _

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits that would arise
if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

TRIRASEROBIL SN MR E
1%$%@F$&¢Hﬂﬂ@¥(§iﬁﬂl“*ﬁ’]ﬁ$

A% B H B0 5 B i 2= A O BIESS 2 8 (AR
HitE R BRI ) -
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Il‘E

(d) E¥EkE(F)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

2014 2013
20145 20134

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on

(decrease) profit (decrease) profit

in foreign after tax in foreign after tax

exchange and retained exchange  and retained

rates profits rates profits

B RS AR A

Ex REREEA fE = RARER 5 A

£#/(TE) wEE A (T )%

$'000 % $'000

TET % T

usb e 5 - 5 -

usD XTT (5) - () -
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table ERFFINDNER  RIRASEESES
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on HIB & E AT BRI R 2 (IR & B HY

PN

TWeeEWETE - WARE HARAEAE X
BERABTLERINZA) P RHRE -

each of the Group entities’ profit after tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into HKD at the

exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes. The sensitivity analysis assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the balance
sheet date. The analysis excludes differences that would result
from the translation of the financial information of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.

FREMMBRRERNZEE ANEFF
ERKEFHE YN HRERREAEE =
RINERBHOERIEA o kT T 2ER
HINEAEBTEERARE 2 MEEPT
EEMZERE - DMNBRHREZ 201345
B[R — BT -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

WREBEEARAT
—T-mEsrR

BREREERESMIANATE

=1
NEEFE

X
B3

FEABHERHEENGE

AFEER

TREJAKERFEHRZEE
EEMAENERITARNTE - %
EERMTAEBNKEBMBHRE
ZERDE 1358 - [AFERTE] R
EN=EXFEER AEE2R
NS ETDEPT R A R A B R A
BRBEEMERL  tMEEAT
EFfEREMERBOER

E—ERMGE : REAE-ERS
NE(DRAEES A ER 2 A
HTER BT 47 0 R AE R R AR )
SHEATE

F_ERME: EAE_BREA
E(MREFE-EBRNATEREA
BE) Y RBEEANABRREH AERK
AEAFE - TAUBRGAEEE
RERTIZEIENBAE

F_ERMAEE  RAERTATEE
BAERFERFE

147
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 HIEREEREMIENATE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%&)
(e) Fair values measurement (continued) (e) DAFEFE ()
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) RATFEFENESREENERE
value (continued) (#]|)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEER (E)

Fair value at
31 December
2014
R2014E
128318
WATE

Group and Company AEERALNF
Recurring fair value measurements BRHLTEE
Assets: AE:
Available-for-sale financial assets: iESREE

- Listed equity securities - tikAES -
Liabltes &
Finandial liabilties at fair value WATEHEEE

through profit or loss 29 2 HER

HERAE 1891

Fair value at

Fair value measurements as at 31 December Fair value measurements as at

31 December categorised into

31 December categorised into 2013

R20135

R12A31BEBUT 12A318
ERATETESE

Level 2

2ZER

$/000

Tn

Level 3
2=ER
§'000
TR

Level 1
%-BR
§'000
TiEx

23,102 23,102 = =

- 1891

During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2014,
there were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of the conversion option and redemption
options embedded in the convertible bonds are
determined using Black-Scholes model. The discount
rate used is derived from market yield of “A-" rated
USD bonds, adjusted for country risk premium between
Hongkong and United States and liquidity risk premium
for the unlisted status and size of the convertible bond
itself of 1.50%.

R B E2013F %2014 12 A 31
ALEFE REcMIAEQATE
WE—ER F_EBRRE=ER
Faﬁig—%’ °

F_ERLFEAEERANGER
(SEIEPNI=|

MATEABRRESHERRRER
i 6] 27 4 &9 A F {8 2 ¥ A Black-
Scholes ' B! 3R #E 7€ o P A Bh 3R XK
ERAZETESFNT SRS XS
o IR 5% MEBEERZH
BERERRE « IELETHARTES
R B34 (B A R AT AR (i 5 R AR
= o
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values measurement (continued)

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2013 and 2014.

26 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding as at
31 December 2014 not provided for in the
financial statements were as follows:

25 ?%@@%E&%ﬂlﬂmﬁ$ﬁ
]
(e) AFEFE (&)

(i) FRATEIBHEREERSE
WAFE

NG B Jo AR BHR AN AN B S K AR
AN TERNRmSRE - HHE
M 20134 &2014%512A318 1
DFEDFITRK °

26 RiE

(a) R2014F12A31BKRBITRX
RET Rz PIEEBENERE
TT :

Contracted for EEES

5,320 4,783

(b) At 31 December 2013 and 2014, the total
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:

(b) 72013F K 2014128318 -
BEFUHELCEHENRRE
REEARBEBERUT I :

16K

Within 1 year

7,403 6,360

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties and
plant held under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of one to two years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

AEERETREEEHERENMER
BERAEMA - —RM = - HENVIZH
RA—ZE2_F  rEBEERMARRR
REEREY - HERESELAES -
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EXBBMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, transactions with REZE2014F K% 2013F 12 A31 BIEFER -

the following parties are considered to be related party transactions: BRI HETHNZ SR BB S
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
S B8 HEREENEEFR
Mr Guo Yumin Director and the Controlling Shareholder
BERELE of the Group
REEEFFHRITRRR
Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate Development Owned by Mr Guo Yumin, the director
Co., Ltd. (fRMImBEFERZEBR A F]) (Note) and the Controlling Shareholder
TN ImEEERZE AR AR HESEHRIERBRRBEREEES
Xuzhou Xingchen Real Estate Development Owned by Mr Guo Yumin, the director
Co., Ltd (RN ERFHERZE AR AF) (Note) and the Controlling Shareholder
BNEREHERZEARAR HESEFRIERBRRBEREEES
Shenzhen Jinjia Color Printing Group Effectively owned 49% equity interest in JSST
Co., Ltd CRIYISN TR ENEBA D BR 2 7)) (Note) BB A ISSTH 49% Axie

RIS ENE BB BR AR

Note: The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official
name of the entity is in Chinese.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEEAEHMH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, REBEFEZEEABHM(BIERHIET
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as F#t BB N T = RN I 3 8 A B8 S A+
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees FETHRS T MESZIE) &YW T :

as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits EEWE%*EW 6,864 8,245
Post-employment benefits %’EH‘%H%?E@ 503 340
Equity compensation benefits N 646 456
8,013 9,041
Total remuneration is disclosed in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). TR ERBEIRAI HE(RWE

5(b))
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions

(i)

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreements dated 4
April 2014 and 16 May 2014, the Company purchased
the entire issued share capital of Sheen Tai International
Investment Ltd, a company wholly owned by the
Controlling Shareholder and director, Mr Guo Yumin
for HK$165,000,000. The acquisition was settled by
issuing a convertible bond in the principal amount of
HK$165,000,000 to Mr Guo Yumin.

Upon completion of the acquisition which took place
on 30 June 2014, Sheen Tai International Investment
Ltd. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and all the profit and loss and assets and
liabilities of the Sheen Tai International Investment Ltd.
were consolidated to the financial statements of the
Company.

From the post acquisition date to 31 December 2014,
Sheen Tai International Investment Ltd. contributed nil
revenue and profit to the Group’s result. The acquisition
had the following effects on the Group’s assets and
liabilities:

(b) EftEAHLXZ

() REN2014F4848%5H16H
FIMEERE  AARKERE
BBRRREESEREELERE
MIEZRBEEEEBRARMNEEE
BEITIRA - 1B A 165,000,0007%8
e BB ERARBERLE
217K & %8 /% 165,000,000 7 7T HY
AR ESHERN o

BRI EE R 2014%F6 A30H 5K
% IERBFIREBRARK AR
NEZEWBAR ﬁﬁJIIE\,J\lE%‘—Z%x
BEBERARMMERZ BEMNE
BEE AT AR R RS BRE

RUKEEEZE 2014412 A31 B
M IERBEBREBRARLEE
REENEETRKATMET - B
BB A EENEENBEYE
LUl

Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value values on
amounts adjustments acquisition

g AT AFE KR

REEE FikS CRRER

$'000 $'000 $'000

TAT T

Property, plant and equipment 15 + Blm iRl 165 = 165
Inventories — property FE-MEER()

development (1) 200,169 19,314 219,483

Trade and other receivables B 5 IR R A b YR 48370 - 48370

Cash and cash equivalents RekReZERA 830 _ 830

Deferred tax liabilities ERBERE = (4,828) (4,828)

Trade and other payables B SRR RE M E A (99,020) = (99,020)

Total identifiable net assets RIS EHEER 150,514 14,486 165,000
Consideration, satisfied by BATHAEE

convertible bond (Note 20) ARk ES (Fiti 20) 165,000
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(continued)

(1

Inventories — property development mainly
represented the land use right held by a PRC
subsidiary of Sheen Tai International Investment
Ltd.

The land located in the Economic Technology
Development District in Xuzhou, Jiangsu, the
PRC with a site area of approximately 49,329
square meters for commercial services use and
for residential township uses. The total maximum
gross floor area permitted to be constructed
on the Land is approximately 108,523.8 square
meters, with a plot ratio of not more than 2.2
and not less than 1, a site coverage of not more
than 30%, a height restriction of 75 meters and
a greenery ratio of not less than 30%.

SCGHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has entered into a Equity Transfer Agreement with
Chinese Hongkong International Tobacco Group Co.,
Limited (the “Purchaser”) in relation to a possible

the Disposal of 51% of its equity interest in Jiangsu

Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“JSST”) on 15 January 2015. The Purchaser is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Jinjia Color
Printing Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Jinjia”), which is a
shareholder of JSST, holding 49% of its interest. More
details were disclosed in note 28.

27 EXBBAERS (&)

(b)

HitbBB L X5 (&)
0 (&)
(1) [7E-DEER] TERKE

(ii)

HIERBERIREAR AR —
eIy UNEIESE Shc o b
{EFTE -

BB LA R BT &R A &
MEE BRI - (FH A
49,329 F 5K - WHEER %
R REEMERS - Bk
fratmtih EEEMEIER
& PR %5 108,523.8F
Ko B ENT 1522
FEEBETHIBE30%  EF
SETBBTS K - MAkLLL
ERIANDP30% ©

MR2015F1 8158 & A
A= &K B A RISCGHL » Bt
AlEE I E TR IBZR 2 2 Bl
ol Bt A PR A &) ([ISST]) Ay
51% A% # - B FH P8 B R E
BEEEERAR(TERDE
I TREERERE - BEAAR
YIS EFEEBR G BR
AEIRYISE D) B2 E
BATE - RIS E=ZISST’
HoEBHA% R B
FEIEEAKIEE28 ©
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 BEXBEEAIXZ ()

(CONTINUED)
(b) Other related party transactions (continued) (b) HtEHLIRS (&)
(i) Other transactions with related parties (i) HMBEHMEIRS

2014
20145
Proceeds Interest on
Interest Rental from Repayment of convertible

expenses expenses borrowing borrowing bond
TRRE

FEXH Hexd HEMERE REEH SHRE
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
TR TR TR TR THER

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate A /ImBEFHE

Development Co., Ltd. HEBRAF 2,492 826 = = =
Xuzhou Xingchen Real Estate /M ERFEHE
Development Co., Ltd. REARRF 1,203 - 7433 (7,433) -
Mr Guo Yumin DEREE = = = = 776
3,695 826 7433 (7.433) 776
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EEEAEES MVASER
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had the M20144E % 2013128318 A& E
following balances with related parties: BRSO ASRA I T
At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014 F 12831H
12H31H 20134
$'000 $'000
THERT T
Amount due to the Controlling JER R AR R R E =
Shareholder and director B
— Mr Guo Yumin -BEREE (i) 3,757 536
Amount due to related companies  FE{TEAEER BFIA
— Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate — RN BE S EE A B
Development Co., Ltd. BRAT (ii) 44,808 -
— Xuzhou Xingchen Real Estate - BN EREHE
Development Co., Ltd. HEFRA A 1,203 =
Convertible bond issued to the MR AR R R E R AT
Controlling Shareholder AR ES
and director
— Mr Guo Yumin -HEREE (iii) 71,050 -

120,818 536
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (continued)

(i) The amount due to the Controlling Shareholder and
director is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

(i)~ Pursuant to the agreement dated 13 May 2014,
Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
had advanced a loan of RMB58,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$73,520,000) to the Group at an
interest rate 8.515% per annum. The Group partially
repaid the loan amounted to HK$28,786,000 on 14
November 2014.

(i)  Information about convertible bond due to the
Controlling Shareholder and director has been disclosed
in note 20.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 16 December 2014, SCGHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a memorandum of understanding (the
“MOU") with Chinese Hongkong International Tobacco Group
Co., Limited (the “Purchaser”) in relation to a possible disposal
(the “Disposal”) of 51% of its equity interest in Jiangsu Shuntai
Packaging & Printing Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“JSST"). The
Purchaser is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Jinjia Color
Printing Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Jinjia”), which is a minority
shareholder of the JSST, holding 49% of its interest. Under the
MOU, the consideration for the Disposal was proposed to be
RMB325 million (the” Consideration”).

On 15 January 2015 SCGHL and the Purchaser entered into a Equity
Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which the SCGHL conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase
the 51% equity interest in JSST at a consideration of RMB325
million which will be satisfied in cash. Upon completion of the
Disposal ,
the JSST will cease to be a subsidiary of the Company.

the Company will not hold any interest in the JSST and

(o) EERARRTT HYAEER ()

() BEANERERRRESOFAREE
- RERARERERE -

(i) 1B E R2014F5813H 5] I B
hE GNEEEHERES
RARIERMAEBERST BEHA
K #58,000,0007T( 4 # & B
73,520,000/ 70 ) FIE R - BERIZ
iﬂ¢8m5%ﬁ§°$%law
201411 A14BEERSER
$%i/528,786,000 /87T °
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BHRFBEE R 20 R o
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28 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

(CONTINUED)

Based on the above facts, the Company considered that JSST met
the criteria to classify as held for sale because the carrying amount
is recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through a continuing use and JSST is available for sale in its present
condition.

Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of JSST were reclassified as
held for sale at the reporting date. The major classes of assets and
liabilities of JSST after elimination of trade payable due to JSKT of
approximately HKD6,919,000 and trade receivables due from JSSC
of approximately HKD24,000, which were presented separately in

the consolidated statement of financial position at the reporting
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FEZEERBBEEINRSE AEBELREHE
RRERINR « BT ¢

date, are as follows:

Assets classified as held for sale PEABEFEEE
Deferred tax assets BETIEAE 23 123
Fixed assets EIE & E 12, () 140,807
Intangible assets mEE 313
Inventories FE 24,687
Trade and other receivables B 5 PN RIA I E A FE W 5K IR 106,773
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFSFEIER 57,947
330,650
Liabilities classified as held for sale SEABEFESE
Trade and other payables B 5 7RI8 N LA A RIR 37,713
Bank loans RITER 0) 101,407
Current taxation BNEATR IR 23 65
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEmEas 585
139,770
() Asat 31 December 2014, buildings, plant and machinery and () HEZ=2014F12A318 ' REFES R

interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
lease with net book value of $19,293,000 and $20,253,000
respectively are pledged as security against bank loans of

JSST.

/%19,293,0007T %.20,253,0007THIIEF
R it es AR R ST B EE BRE
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(a)

(b)

(9)

Revenue recognition

The Group’s sales of goods are recognised when criteria
set out in note 2(t) are met. Managerial judgement is
applied regarding, among other aspects, conformance with
acceptance criteria and if transfer of risks and rewards to the
customer has taken place to determine if revenue should
be recognised in the current year and the customer credit
standing to assess whether payment is likely or not to justify
revenue recognition.

Revenues may materially change if management’s assessment
of such criteria was determined to be inaccurate.

Allowance for doubtful receivables

As described in note 25(a), credit risks of customers are
regularly assessed with reference to the estimated future cash
flow of an individual debtor or a portfolio of debtors and
changes in the financial condition that have an adverse effect
on the debtor, and allowances are recorded for estimated
losses. If the financial conditions of customers were to
deteriorate/improve, additional/reversal of allowance may be
required in future periods.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews
annually the estimated useful lives of the assets in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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29 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Net realisable value of inventories

(e)

(f)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. In addition, these estimates could change significantly
as a result of change in customer preference and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management
measures these estimates at each reporting date.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatments of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatments of
such transactions are reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for deductible temporary differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the related tax benefits can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management reassess these estimates at each
end of the respective reporting period.

Investment property

The Group has temporarily sub-let a vacant warehouse but
has decided not to treat this property as an investment
property because it is not the Group’s intention to hold this
property in the long-term for capital appreciation or rental
income. Accordingly, this property is still treated an item of
other property, plant and equipment.
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30 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

31

0

(ii)

(iii)

As included in note 28, on 15 January 2015, SCGHL, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Chinese
Hongkong International Tobacco Group Co., Limited (the
“Purchaser”) entered into an Equity Transfer Agreement,
pursuant to which the SCGHL conditionally agreed to sell,
and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase the
51% equity interest in Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing
Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“JSST”) at a consideration of
RMB325 million which will be satisfied in cash. The Purchaser
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Jinjia Color Printing
Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Jinjia”), which is a shareholder of
the JSST, holding 49% of its interest.

The Disposal was approved by Extra-ordinary General Meeting
of the Company on 9 March 2015.

On 29 January 2015, the Company announced 14,600,000
share options to subscribe for up to a total of 14,600,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were
granted to certain employees and individuals (the “Grantees”)
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 22 June 2012 (note 22), subject to the acceptance of the
Grantees.

On 6 February 2015, the Company entered into the Placing
Agreement with the Placing Agent whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing Agent,
a maximum of 83,000,000 new Shares to not less than six
placees at a price of HK$2.66 per Placing Share. The placing
was completed on 26 February 2015.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Sheen Tai Group
Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI and beneficially

owned by Guo Yumin. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

(CEREERDE 19RNERT - REEFE - EEHA
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle
(B BRI T &2 R Dry IR 2 (2010 2012 F/ZEH])
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle
(BBHBHRE R A F R (2011 22013 FZHH])
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation
(EEGTTHEANE 16 58 R(EB GRS 38 5FMEET
- AIEERYTE R 7085
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(CEBTBRELRDE 155 - FE ELEARTKA
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BRMBHREER)DFE IS -2 TA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation from the company’s first financial year commencing after
3 March 2014 (i.e. the company’s financial year which began on 1
January 2015) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application
of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to
be significant and will primarily only affect the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements.
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RFEMHHHE

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A318LLFE

2013 2012
20134 20124
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
Turnover ] 712,534 706,134 699,555 674,983 550,534
Cost of sales SHEERC AN (430,286)  (439,487) (445,033)  (428,346)  (356,787)
Gross profit E7 282,248 266,647 254,522 246,637 193,747
Other revenue and net income E A FoF I ES 25,950 12,777 16,188 26,003 13,759
Distribution costs D SHR AN (14,777) (15,392) (11,941) (17,642) (13,366)
Administrative expenses THAY (76,354) (67,943) (66,459) (43,169) (30,848)
Other operating expenses H AR 2 (8,100) (624) (844) (17) (3,405)
Profit from operations LR 208,967 195,465 191,466 211,812 159,887
Finance costs BARS R AN (18,366) (19,645) (21,085) (18,603) (16,394)
Profit before taxation BAER 190,601 175,820 170,381 193,209 143,493
Income tax Fris®i (39,497) (47,489) (46,453) (52,453) (38,331)
Profit for the year FRER 151,104 128,331 123,928 140,756 105,162
Attributable to: BTN AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR BI#EZEAR R 92,507 77,934 70,076 81,426 60,684
Non-controlling interests FEE AR 58,597 50,397 53,852 59,330 44,478
Profit for the year FRBER 151,104 128,331 123,928 140,756 105,162
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEAE
Total Assets BEE 1,194,906 861,630 790,131 829,317 719,996
Total liabilities BeE (658,178)  (389,400) (395,598)  (438,514)  (444,661)
Net Assets FEE 536,728 472,230 394,533 390,803 275,335
Total equity attributable to equity A FERERE
shareholders of the Company EihaER 441,868 382,489 333,505 241,176 157,281
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